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Corporate Profile

Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. is

a real estate investment trust
(REIT) focused on the upscale,
extended-stay suite segment of
the hotel industry. Our hotels
operate under the Residence Inn®
by Marriott® and Homewood
Suites® by Hilton brands, the
nation’s leading chains of

upscale extended-stay hotels. Qur ’ =
focus is to acquire high-quality W/\
hotels that generate attractive J =
returns for our shareholders. As @ .

of December 31, 2003, our port- 77

folio consisted of 66 hotels, con-

taining a tOtal Of 7/869 SUIteS/ Fiﬁan@ial Highlighﬁs (In thousands, except per share data)

diversified among 25 states.
Operating Results as of December 31, 2003 2002 (a)
Total revenue $ 195,806 $ 106,220
Net income 3 1,497 $ 18,867
Modified funds from operations m  $ 36,675 $ 26,429
Modified FFO per share $ 0.89 $ 1.23
Distributions paid per share $ 1.50 $ 1.00
Balance Sheet Data as of December 31, 2003 2002
Investment in hotels, net $ 638,658 $ 388,034
Total assets $ 692,113 $ 557,754
Shareholders’ equity $ 308,920 $ 262,982
Weighted-average shares outstanding 41,421 21,557

(a) The operating results and balance sheet data reported here for December 31, 2002 do not reflect any merger-
related transactions with Apple Suites, Inc. that occurred in 2003 or any acquisitions subsequent to that date

(b) Modified funds from operations (FFO) is defined as net income (computed in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles — GAAP) excluding gains and losses from sales of depreciable property, plus depreciation, amorti-
zation and certain start-up and merger costs. The company considers modified FFO in evaluating property acquisitions
and its operating performance and believes that modified FFO should be considered along with, but not as an alterna-
tive to, net income and cash flows as a measure of the company’s activities in accordance with GAAP. Modified FFO is
not necessarily indicative of cash available to fund cash needs.

The trademarks contained herein are registered trademarks. Residence Inn® by Marriott® and Marriott Rewards® are registered trademarks of Marriott International, Inc.
Homewood Suites® by Hilton is a registered trademark of Hilton Hospitality, Inc. HHonors® and Double Dipping® are registered trademarks of Hilton Honors Worldwide L.L.C.




Ho Hosnitality our mission to

CONGRATULATIONS TO THE ON-SITE TEAMS AT OUR
HOTELS WHO WON THE FOLLOWING BRAND AWARDS
FOR THEIR STRONG PERFORMANCE IN 2003:

RESIDENCE INN BY MARRIOTT
St. Louis Galleria, Missouti

Jim Contey Award

Santa Fe, New Mexico,
Assoclate of the Year

Placentia, California

Associate of the Year

Columbus North, Ghio

Sales Excellence Award

Atlanta Dunwoody, Georgia
Sales Excellence Award
Montgomery, Alabama

Service So Memorable Award
Philadelphia Valley Forge, Pennsylvania
Service So Memorable Award

Bouldet, Colorado
Silver Hotel

Chicago Lombard, Illinois
Silver Hotel

Pleasant Hill Concord, California
Silver Hotel

Seattle Redmond, Washington
Silver Hotel

St. Petersburg Clearwater, Florida
Silver Hotel

but also 07 Homewood Sultes |

HOMEWQOD SUITES BY RILTON

Washington Dulles International
Airport, VA

Pride Award of Merit

Saies Team of the Year

General Manager of the Year
Award of Merit

Highest Extended Stay Percentage
Extended Stay Most Improved

Dalias Plano, Texas

Pride Award of Merit

Sales Team of the Year

General Manager of the Year
Award of Merit

Jackson Ridgeland, Mississippi
Sales Team of the Year

Highest Extended Stay Percentage
Extended Stay Most Improved

Atlanta Peachtree Corners, Georgia

Extended Stay Most Improved




We are excited to add the Homewood Suites brand to our portfolio, thereby further diversifying our assets,
and to work with the Hilton franchise, one of the most recognizable names in the hotel industry. Homewood
Suites, like Residence Inn, is an extended-stay hotel chain primarily designed to meet the needs of travelers
who stay five nights or more. These residentiai-style hotels feature spacious suites with separate sleeping and
living areas and offer a 100% Satisfaction Guarantee. An added benefit of the Homewood Suites brand is its
participation in Hilton HHonors®, an award-winning guest reward program that provides members both hotel
points and miles for the same stay—a benefit Hilton calls Double Dipping®.

Also in January we purchased a Residence Inn hotel in Redmond, Washington. This hotel, containing 180
suites, is conveniently located in the Seattle metropolitan area near the headquarters of a number of major
corporations, including Microsoft Corporation and AT&T Wireless. The greater Seattle area is a leading center
for advanced technology in aerospace, computer software, electronics, medical equipment, and environmental
engineering. Boeing, which is one of the largest aircraft manufacturers in the world and consistently one of the
top three exporters in the United States, is also located in the region. In addition, tourism is Washington’s
fourth largest industry. The Norwegian Cruise Line recently added Seattle as a home port and the Washington
State Convention and Trade Center completed a major expansion in Seattle in 2001.

In addition to acquiring new hotels, we completed renovations on 13 hotels in 2003 and we plan to renovate
additional hotels within the next year. These renovations include upgrading and modernizing the guest rooms,
gatehouses, and hotel exterior and interior appearances, and restoring structural items such as roofing, siding
and stairs. The hotels are now stunning. The gatehouses, for example, are more vibrant, brimming with new
furniture and décor, and the guest rcoms are both more comfortable and attractive, also featuring new furni-
ture and décor as well as upgraded bathrooms. By enhancing our properties, not only are we adding value to
our assets, we also anticipate that guest satisfaction and our hotels’ competitive positioning will improve
which should allow us to increase our rates, subsequently contributing to higher profitability. The results thus
far have been positive. Qur renovated hotels have improved their Guest Satisfaction Scores (GSS) and we are
seeing a trend in which rates are increasing. In fact, seven of our 10 top-performing Residence Inn hotels in
the first period of 2004 are newly renovated hotels.

We look forward to the coming year. We remain committed to our mission to generate the highest possible
value for you. Thank you for your continued support.

Sincerely,

ALY Lo

Glade M. Knight
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Annual Report 2003 APPLE HOSPITALITY TWC



At Apple Hospa*ahty, we deve!op our busmess plans based
on a carefully- crafted mission and cEeaFobjectWes “We know
r.hat;m order 0 ’succeed’ we: must have a m:ssmn that gundes -

HOMEWOOD SUITES

Our Homewood Suites Herndon hotel, located within
the Washington, D.C. metropolitan market just three
miles from Dulles International Airport, was one of our
top performers in 2003. This hotel achieved the second
highest average daily rate (ADR) in our portfolio, at
approximately $118, which coupled with a strong 82
percent occupancy ranked the hotel second in our port-

folio for revenue per available room (RevPAR) at $97.




Committed to Our Gorporate Values

Apple Hospitality operates with an unwavering
commitment to the highest ethical standards and
service. Creating an environment of transparency
in the conduct of business is a high priority for
Apple Hospitality and that’s one reason why we've
adopted the following as our company values:

Integrity

We exemplify the highest standards of personal and
professional ethics in all aspects of our business.
We believe in being open, honest and trustworthy,
and in taking responsibility for our actions. We are
committed to being fair and objective, and to acting
in accordance with our convictions. We comply
fully with the letter and spirit of the laws, rules

and practices that govern Apple Hospitality.

Respect

We treat others as we desire to be treated. We
respect the dignity of each individual, whether an
Apple team member, shareholder, partner, colleague,
or member of the community. We behave profession-
ally and responsibly. We value diversity and support
an environment where people of different back-
grounds can reach their fullest potential with equal
access to opportunities. We embrace a corporate
culture where work and personal fife are balanced.

Loyalty .

We appreciate those who show loyalty to us, and

we promise loyalty to them in return. We recognize
and reward individual contributions and achieve-
ments. We deliver on our commitments, and commit
ourselves to acting in the best interests of our share-
holders, Apple team members, partners, colleagues,
and community.

Annual Report 003

Improvement

We believe in continuous improvement, encouraging
our people to think innovatively and respond dynami-
cally. We provide superior training and resources, and
encourage our people to grow both professionally and
personally. We demand high standards from ourselves,
challenging us to reach our potential.

Entrepreneurship

We have confidence in the intelligence, talents, skills,
and foresight of our Apple team members, and we
believe that our company operates best in an entrepre-
neurial environment. We empower our people to make
timely and responsible decisions and to take actions
necessary to achieve exceptional operating results.

Collaboration

We value individual differences in style, perspectives
and background, and we value independent thinking
and talent, but we believe that individual contributions
made in a collaborative setting are most effective.

We cooperate and collaborate within and across
workgroups and teams, and share our successes and
failures. We are dependable and reliable and share
the workload. We communicate and share information
openly and candidly with each other. We forge rela-
tionships that are beneficial for all parties involved.

Competency

We recruit and retain exceptional people with high
levels of skill, education, and experience. We yalgﬁeﬁ B
motivated and ambitious. individuals who Wor:krevﬁﬁ---- s
ciently and productively to help us fulfill our mission.

APPLE HOSPITALITY TWO
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Committed to Adding Value

RESIDENCE INN

LA JOLLA, CALIFORNIA
The gatehouse pictured
here at our La Jolla
Residence Inn is represen-
tative of all of the renova-
tions completed on our
gatehouses. Renovations of
our gatehouses included
everything from adding new
wood-faced front desks with
granite tops, and granite-
top buffets, to new chairs,
tables, sofas, drapes, tile,
carpet, artwork, and light
fixtures. A fitness room

and a Market Express, a
24-hour on-site convenience
store, were also added to

our hotels.

APPLE WOSPITALITY TWO
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Our Portfolio

ALABAMA
Residence Inn
Residence Inn

CALIFORNIA
Residence Inn
Residence Inn
Residence Inn
Residence Inn
Residence Inn
Residence Inn
Residence Inn
Residence Inn
Residence Inn

COLORADO
Homewood Suites
Residence Inn

CONNECTICUT
Residence Inn

FLORIDA
Residence Inn
Homewood Suites
Residence Inn
Residence Inn
Residence Inn

GEORGIA
Residence Inn
Homewood Suites
Residence Inn
Homewood Suites
Residence Inn
Residence Inn
Homewood Suites

ILLINOQIS
Residence Inn
Residence Inn

LOUISIANA
Residence Inn

MARYLAND
Homewood Suites

Birmingham
Montgomery

Arcadia

Bakersfield
Concord-Pleasant Hill
Costa Mesa

[rvine

La Jolla

Long Beach
Placentia

San Ramon

Bouider
Boulder

Meriden

Boca Raton
Clearwater

Clearwater-St. Petersburg

Jacksonville
Pensacola

Altanta Airport-Hapeville

Atlanta-Buckhead
Atlanta-Buckhead
Atlanta-Cumberland
Atlanta-Cumberland
Atlanta-Dunwoody
Atlanta-Peachtree

Chicago-Deerfield
Chicago-Lombard

Shr_eveport-Bossier City

Baltimore-BWI Airport

MASSACHUSETTS,

Residence Inn
Residence Inn

MICHIGAN
Homewood Suites
Residence Inn
Residence Inn

Boston-Danvers
Boston-Tewksbury

Detroit-Warren
Kalamazoo
Southfield

Annual Report 2003
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property in the market

MISSISSIPPI
Homewood Suites Jackson
Residence Inn Jackson

MISSOURI

property in the market

PENNSYLVANIA

Residence Inn
Homewood Suites

Philadelphia-Berwyn
Philadelphia-Great Valley

Homewood Suites
Residence Inn
Residence Inn

NEVADA
Residence Inn

NEW MEXICO
Residence Inn

St. Louis-Chesterfield
St. Louis-Chesterfield
St. Louis-Galleria

Las Vegas

Santa Fe

NORTH CAROLINA

Residence Inn
Residence Inn

OHIO

Residence Inn
Residence Inn
Residence Inn
Residence Inn
Residence Inn
Residence Inn

OREGON
Homewood Suites

Charlotte
Greensboro

Akron

Cincinnati-Blue Ash
Cincinnati-Sharonville
Columbus

Dayton North

Dayton South

Portland-Beaverton

SOUTH CAROLINA

Residence Inn
Residence Inn

TENNESSEE
Residence Inn

TEXAS
Homewood Suites
Homewood Suites
Residence Inn
Residence Inn
Residence Inn
Homewood Suites

UTAH
Homewood Suites

VIRGINIA
Homewood Suites
Homewood Suites

Columbia
Spartanburg

Memphis

Dallas-Addison
Dallas-Irving
Dallas-Irving
Houston-Clear Lake
Lubbock
Dallas-Plano

Salt Lake City-Midvale

Richmond
Dulles International- Airport

WASHINGTON
Residence Inn Redmond
PRz ACSPITALITY TWS



UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

Annual report pursuant to section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003

[] Transition report pursuant to section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934

For the transition period from to
Commission File Number 000-49748

APPLE HOSPITALITY TWO, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

VIRGINIA 54-2010305
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)
10 S. Third Street Richmond, Virginia 23219
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
(804) 344-8121

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the act:
None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12 (g) of the act:
Units (Each Unit is equal to one common share, no par value, and one Series A preferred share)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90
days. Yes No []

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of deliquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (5229.405 of
this chapter) is not continued herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive
proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part I1I of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this
Form 10-K. Yes [] No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the
Act).  Yes No []

Based upon the price at which the common equity for Apple Hospitality Two, Inc’s best efforts offering was
last sold through June 30, 2003., the aggregate market value of the voting common equity held by non-affiliates
of the registrant on such date was a total of $387,068,722. The Company does not have any non-voting common
equity. :

On December 31, 2003, there were approximately 40,644,638 common shares outstanding.
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PARTI

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Such statements
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors which may cause the actual results,
performance, or achievements of the Company to be materially different from future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors include the ability of the
Company to implement its acquisition strategy and operating strategy; the Company’s ability to manage planned
growth; changes in economic cycles and competition within the extended-stay hotel industry. Although the
Company believes that the assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements contained herein are
reasonable, any of the assumptions could be inaccurate, and therefore there can be no assurance that such
statements included in this Annual Report will prove to be accurate. In light of the significant uncertainties
inherent in the forward-looking statements included herein, the inclusion of such information should not be
regarded as a representation by the Company or any other person that the results or conditions described in such
.. statements. or the objectives and plans of the Company will be achieved. In addition, the Company’s qualification
as a real estate investment trust involves the application of highly technical and complex provisions of the
Internal Revenue Code. Readers should earefully review the Company’s financial statements and the notes
thereto, as well as the risk factors described in the Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Item 1. Business

Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. (the “Company”), a Virginia corporation, was formed on January 17, 2001, with the
first investor closing on May 1, 2001. The Company merged with Apple Suites, Inc., structured as a tax-fee
merger, on January 31, 2003 and results of Apple Suites operations are included in the Company’s results from
February 1, 2003. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries. All significant inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated upon consolidation.

The Company is a real estate investment trust. The REIT Modernization Act, effective January 1, 2001, permits
real estate investment trusts (“REIT”) to establish taxable businesses to conduct certain previously disallowed
business activities. The Company has wholly-owned taxable REIT subsidiaries (collectively, the “Lessee”),
which lease all of the Company’s hotels from wholly-owned qualified REIT subsidiaries. The hotels are operated
and managed by affiliates of either Marriott or Hilton under hotel management agreements.

Website Access

The address of the company’s Internet website is www.applehospitality.com. The company makes available
through its Internet website its annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on From 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange
Act as soon as reasonably practicable after the company electronically files such material with, or furnishes it to,
the SEC.

Growth Strategies

The Company’s primary objective is to enhance shareholder value by increasing cash from operations and cash
available for distributions. The Company’s focus is on maximizing the internal growth of the Company’s
portfolio by selecting properties that have strong cash flow growth potential.

The Company seeks to increase operating cash flow and enhance its value through internal growth, renovations
and acquisitions. The Company’s internal growth strategy is to utilize its asset management expertise to improve
the quality of the Company’s hotels by renovating, redeveloping and thereby improving hotel revenue and
operational performance.




The Company believes that its planned future renovation and redevelopment activities will increase revenue per
available room (“REVPAR”) growth at the Company’s hotels, thereby increasing lease revenue. The Company is
committed to fund a percentage of gross revenue per month for certain capital expenditures for periodic
replacement or refurbishment of furniture, fixtures and equipment. The Company has approximately $16.5
million held in escrow for future furniture, fixture and equipment purchases at December 31, 2003. During 2003,
the Company began a major renovation program for its hotels to enhance revenue per available room. This
program will continue in 2004. Total capital expenditures in the program were approximately $40 million and
included thirteen hotels. Renovations of twelve additional hotels are planned for 2004.

The Company continuously monitors its portfolios and will, where appropriate, selectively acquire or dispose of
properties based on specific market conditions.

Financing

Substantially all of the Company’s hotels are encumbered by mortgage debt. The Company’s bylaws require
board of director approval for debt above certain levels. Debt levels are reviewed quarterly by the board to ensure
reasonableness in relation to the Company’s assets.

Competition

The Company believes that the hotel industry is highly competitive. Each of the Company’s hotels is located in a
developed area that includes other hotels and competes for guests primarily with other extended-stay hotels in its
immediate vicinity and secondarily with other hotels in its geographic market. An increase in the number of
competitive hotels in a particular area could have a material adverse effect on the occupancy, average daily rate
(“ADR”) and revenue per available room (“REVPAR?”) of the Company’s hotels in that area. The Company
believes that brand recognition, location, price and guality (of both the hotel and the services provided) are the
principal competitive factors affecting its hotels.

Hotel Operating Performance

The Company owned 49 Residence Inn® by Marriott® hotels, consisting of 5,947 suites, and 17 Homewood
Suites® by Hilton® hotels (acquired on January 31, 2003),consisting of 1,922 suites at December 31, 2003, and’
48 Residence Inn® by Marriott® hotels, consisting of 5,767 suites at December 31, 2002. Suite revenues for these
hotels totaled $189,599,903 for the year ended December 31, 2003, and $102,895,689 for the year ended
December 31, 2002. For those same periods, the hotels achieved average occupancy of 74% and 78%, ADR of
$91 and $92 and REVPAR of $67 and $71, respectively.

Property Taxes and Insurance

The Company maintains real estate tax escrows, funded from gross revenues of the hotels, which are used to pay
the costs of real estate and personal property taxes for certain properties and portfolios. Property insurance is also
funded from gross revenues. Taxes, insurance and other expenses incurred by the Company totaled $12,762,914
for the year ended December 31, 2003 and $6,578,038 for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Maintenance

The hotels have an ongoing need for renovation and refurbishment. Under various hotel management
agreements, the Company has agreed to fund expenditures for periodic repairs, replacement or refurbishment of
furniture, fixtures and equipment for the hotels in an amount equal to a certain percentage of gross revenues. In
addition, other capital improvement projects are directly funded by the Company.
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Employees

During 2003, all employees involved in the day-to-day operation of the Company’s hotels were employed by the

management companies engaged pursuant to the hotel management agreements. Persons working at the corporate
headquarters on the Company’s behalf were employees of Apple Suites Advisors, Inc. (“ASA”) until January 31,

2003, at which time those persons became employees of Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. At December 31, 2003, the

Company had 18 employees.

Environmental Matters

In connection with each of the Company’s hotel acquisitions, the Company obtains a Phase I Environmental

Report and such additional environmental reports and surveys as are necessitated by such preliminary report.
Based on such reports, the Company is not aware of any environmental situations requiring remediation at its
properties, which have not been or are not currently being remediated as necessary. No material remediation

costs have or are expected to occur.

Property Acquisitions
During fiscal year 2003, the Company acquired the following:

On January 17, 2003, the Company acquired, through a subsidiary, the Residence Inn Redmond extended-stay
hotel in Redmond, Washington. (The Residence Inn® and Marriott® trademarks are the property of Marriott
International, Inc. or one of its affiliates). For prorated rent and other accounting purposes, the effective date of
the acquisition is treated as January 3, 2003, but closing on the acquisition did not occur until January 17, 2003.

Effective on January 31, 2003, Apple Suites, Inc., a Virginia corporation (“Suites”), merged (the “Merger”) with
and into Hospitality Acquisition Company, a Virginia corporation and a subsidiary of Apple Hospitality Two,
Inc. (“Hospitality™). Suites owned, either directly or through its subsidiaries, a total of 17 upper-end extended-
stay hotels throughout the United States, which comprised a total of 1,922 suites.

For further information about these acquisitions, refer to the Company’s discussion of the Merger under the
“Recent Acquisitions” section of Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations.

Item 2. Properties

As of December 31, 2003, the Company owned 49 Residence Inn® by Marriott® hotels comprised of 5,947 suites
and 17 Homewood Suites® by Hilton hotels comprised of 1,922 suites. The hotels are located in various states.
The following table includes the location of each hotel, the date of construction, the date acquired,
encumbrances, initial acquisition cost, gross carrying value and the number of suites of each hotel.
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Investment in hotels at December 31, 2003, consisted of the following:

Land . ..o $139,098,160
Building and improvements .. .............uveernre e, 475,597,441
Furniture, fixtures and equipment . . . .. S 51,667,967
TOtal .o 666,363,568
Less: accumulated depreciation ... ........... i (27,705,484)
Investments INHOtel, NEE . .. . v it $638,658,084

For additional information about the Company’s properties, refer to Item 7. Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company is not presently subject to any material litigation nor, to its knowledge, is any litigation threatened

against the Company or any of its properties, other than routine actions arising in the ordinary course of business,
some of which are expected to be covered by liability insurance and all of which collectively are not expected to

have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business or financial condition or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.




PART II

Item 5. Market For Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
Common Shares

The Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-77055) was declared effective by the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 1, 2001, and on that date the Company commenced an initial best
efforts offering of 20.1 million Units. On May 29, 2002, the initial offering closed. The Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-101194) was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange
Commission on May 2, 2002, and on that date the Company commenced its second best efforts offering of 10
million Units. On November 26, 2002, the second offering closed. The managing underwriter was David Lerner
Associates, Inc. and all of the Units were sold for the Company’s account. A Unit consists of one common share
and one Series A preferred share. The Series A preferred shares have no voting rights, no distribution rights, and
no conversion rights. In addition, the Series A preferred shares are not separately tradable from the common
shares to which they relate. The only right associated with each Series A preferred share is a priority distribution
upon the sale of the Company’s assets. The priority distribution will be equal to $10.00 per Series A preferred
share, and no more, before any distribution will be made to the holders of any other shares. Upon that
distribution, the Series A preferred shares will have no other distribution rights.

There is currently no established public market in which the Company’s common shares are traded.
On December 31, 2003, there were 11,435 beneficial shareholders of the Company’s common shares.

Distributions of $54,243,300 were paid to the shareholders during 2003. Distributions were paid in an amount of
$1.50 per share for the year ended December 31, 2003. The $1.50 per share includes a special dividend of $.50
associated with the Company’s merger with Apple Suites, Inc. In 2002, the Company paid distributions at an
annual rate of $1.00 per share. The timing and amounts of distributions to shareholders are within the discretion
of the Company’s Board of Directors. Future distributions will depend on the Company’s results of operations,
cash flow from operations, economic conditions and other factors such as working capital and capital expenditure
requirements, as well as requirements under federal income tax provisions for qualification as a REIT.

Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan and Incentive Plan

The Company’s board of directors has adopted and the Company’s shareholders have approved a Non-Employee
Directors Stock Option Plan and an Incentive Plan. The options issued under each plan convert to Units. Each
Unit is equal to one common share and one Series A Preferred share of the Company. As of December 31, 2003,
there were 121,820 options outstanding.

Distribution Policy

To maintain its REIT status the Company is required to distribute at least 90% of its ordinary income. All
distributions are at the discretion of the Company’s board of directors. Since inception of the Company, it has
paid a quarterly dividend of $.25 per share, excluding a one-time dividend associated with the Apple Suites, Inc.
merger. As a result of the Company’s 2003 results from operations and renovation program, the Company will
reevaluate its dividend policy in 2004.

Series C Convertible Preferred Shares Dividend and Distribution Rights

The holders of the Company’s Series C convertible preferred shares will be entitled to receive, on an as
converted basis, the same distributions as declared for the holders of the Company’s common shares, except for
distributions in liquidation. If the Company liquidates the Company’s assets or dissolves entirely and the
Company’s assets are sufficient to pay the distribution rights of the Series A preferred shares in full, the
remaining assets will first be used to pay $10.00 per share to the holders of the Series C convertible
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preferred shares, on an as converted basis. Then, any remaining assets will be distributed pro rata to the holders
of common shares and the holders of Series C convertible preferred shares, on an as converted basis.

Conversion

The Series C convertible preferred shares will be convertible into Units upon and for 180 days following the
occurrence of either of the following events: (1) the Company transfers substantially all of the Company’s assets,
stock or business as a going concern, whether through exchange, merger, consolidation, lease, share exchange or
otherwise, other than a sale of assets in liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company’s business; or (2)
the Company lists the Company’s Units on a national securities exchange or quotation system or in any
established market. Upon the occurrence of either triggering event, each Series C convertible preferred share will
be convertible into one unit, subject to adjustment to reflect stock dividends on, or split, subdivision or
combination of, the Company’s common shares.

Vating Rights

The holders of Series C convertible preferred shares are entitled to vote on all matters submitted to a vote of
shareholders as if they were converted into the Company’s common shares, except as otherwise provided by law.
The holders of the Company’s common-shares and- the holders of Series C convertible preférred shares, on an as
converted basis, have exclusive voting power with respect to the election of directors, except as provided with
respect to any other class or series of shares. There is no cumulative voting in the election of directors. Therefore
the holders of a majority of the outstanding common shares and Series C convertible preferred shares, on an as
converted basis, are able to elect all of the directors then standing for election and the holders of the remaining
common shares and Series C convertible preferred shares are not able to elect any directors.

Changes in Securities and Use of Proceeds

In connection with the merger with Apple Suites, the Company’s advisory agreement and the advisory agreement
of Apple Suites with ASA was terminated. No further advisory fees are due under those agreements. In addition,
the property acquisition/distribution agreements that the companies had with ASRG also was terminated. As a
result of the Merger, the 240,000 Class B convertible preferred shares of Apple Suites held by Glade M. Knight
and two business associates converted into 480,000 common shares of Apple Suites, which subsequently
converted into 480,000 Units. Mr. Knight and the other holders of the Company’s Series B convertible preferred
shares of Apple Hospitality Two exchanged their Series B convettible preterred shares for 1,272,000 newly
created Series C convertible preferred shares.
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Item 6.
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(in thousands, except per share data)

The following table sets forth selected financial data for the year ended December 31, 2003, December 31, 2002,
and for the period January 17, 2001, through December 31, 2001, that has been derived from the Company’s
audited financial statements and notes thereto. This data should be read in conjunction with Item 7,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations, and Item 15(a), the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto, appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

For the period
For the year ended For the year ended January 17, 2001 through
December 31,2003 December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001

Revenues:
SUIETEVENUE . ..\t v e iie et i ie i e e $189,600 $102,896 $ 10,022
Otherrevenue ..............c.iiiineiianinnn.n 6,206 3,324 415
Total TeVENUE .. ..o v ittt e e i 195,806 106,220 10,437
Expenses:
Hotel expenses ...................... e 119,715 59,161 5,625
Taxes, insurance andother ........................ 12,763 6,578 553
General and administrative ........................ 1,948 1,943 491
Depreciation . .. ... i 19,264 7,562 1,085
Merger costs-related parties . .. ................ ... 15,914 — —
Interest and other expenses,net . .................... 24,705 12,109 (634)
Total eXpenses .. ...t 194,309 87,353 7,120
NetinCome . ..o vie e e $ 1,497 $ 18,867 $ 3,317
Per Share
Earnings per common share ....................... $ 0.04 $ 088 $ 052
Distributions paid to common shareholders ........... $ 150 $ 100 $ .50
Weighted-average common shares outstanding - basic . . . 41,421 21,557 6,334
Balance Sheet Data )
Cash and cashequivalents ......................... $ 17,296 $125,522 § 15,469
Investmentin hotels,net ...t $638,658 $388,034 $ 121,078
Total assets ...ttt $692,113 $557,754 $ 178,381
Notes payable-secured . . .............coiiuinnn.... $362,763 $269,297 $ 52,874
Shareholders’ equity .................. ... ... ... $308,920 $262,982 $ 120,461
Net book value pershare .......................... $ 1737 $§ 872 $ 8.6
Other Data
Cashflowfrom: ....... ... ... e,
Operating activities ............covviieinn.un. $ 35,923 $ 24,003 $ 4,694
Investing activities . ..........cooeuvuneeanin.. $(71,682) $(28,257) $(108,918)
Financing activities .......................... $(72,467) $114,307 $ 119,693
Number of hotels owned at end of period ............. 66 48 10
Funds From Operations Calculation
NEtIICOME © . oot i it e it eeenns $ 1,497 $ 18,867 $ 3,317
Depreciation . ...........coiiiiiiniiiiia 19,264 7,562 1,085
Merger costs-related parties . ................... 15,914 — —
- Modified funds from operations (a) .. ................ $ 36,675 $ 26,429 $ 4,402
Modified FFOpershare .......................... $ 089 $ 123 $ 069

(a) Funds from operations (FFO) is defined as net income (computed in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles - GAAP) excluding gains and losses from sales of depreciable property, plus depreciation,
amortization and certain start-up costs. Additionally, the Company has excluded merger reiated costs as it
believes modified FFO is a better measure of the Company’s performance. The merger costs are not anticipated
to be recurring and were a result of the Company’s merger with Apple Suites. The company considers modified
FFO in evaluating property acquisitions and its operating performance and believes that modified FFO should be
considered along with, but not as an alternative to, net income and cash flows as a measure of the Company’s
activities in accordance with GAAP and is not necessarily indicative of cash available to fund cash needs.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This annual report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Such Statements
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors which may cause the actual results,
performance, or achievements of the Company to be materially different from future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors include the ability of the
Company to implement its acquisition strategy and operating strategy; the Company’s ability to manage planned
growth; changes in economic cycles and competition within the extended-stay hotel industry. Although the
Company believes that the assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements contained herein are
reasonable, any of the assumptions could be inaccurate, and therefore there can be no assurance that such
statements included in this annual report will prove to be accurate. In light of the significant uncertainties
inherent in the forward-looking statements included herein, the inclusion of such information should not be
regarded as a representation by the Company or any other person that the results or conditions described in such
statements or the objectives and plans of the Company will be achieved. In addition, the Company’s qualification
as a real estate investment trust involves the application of highly technical and complex provisions of the
Internal Revenue Code. Readers should carefully review the Company’s financial statements and the notes
thereto, as well as the risk factors described in the Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Overview

The Company is a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) that owns upscale, extended-stay hotels. The Company
was formed on January 17, 2001, with the first investor closing commencing on May 1, 2001. The Company
owns 66 hotels within different markets in the United States. The performance of the Company’s hotels can be
influenced by many factors, including local hotel competition, local and national economic conditions and the
performance of the individual managers assigned to our hotels. In evaluating financial condition and operating
performance, the Company focuses on revenue measurements such as occupancy, average daily rate and revenue
per available room and expenses such as hotel operating expenses, general and administrative expenses and other
expenses described below.

During 2003, the Company’s results were impacted by two significant events. First, the lodging industry as a
whole continued to experience a decline in occupancy and rates due to general economic conditions. Second, the
Company began a major renovation project for many of its hotels. Accordingly, the Company’s financial
performance was lower than prior years. Since there can be no assurance that economic conditions will improve,
and since the Company will continue its renovation project in 2004, there can be no assurance that operating
results will improve in 2004. However, due to the positive impact of the completed renovations and positive
economic conditions in early 2004, the Company does believe there will be improvement in its results in 2004.

12



Hotels Owned

The Company owns 66 hotels, with a total of 7,869 suites. Of the Company’s 66 hotels, we own 49 Residence
Inn® by Marriott® properties consisting of 5,947 suites, and 17 Homewood Suites® by Hilton consisting of 1,922
suites.

The Company acquired its first 10 hotels in September 2001, The following table summarizes the locations of
and number of suites at these ten hotels (collectively, the “Crestline Portfolio™), all of which operate as part of
the Residence Inn® by Marriott® franchise system:

Location of hotels # of Suites
Montgomery, Alabama ... ...... ... e 94
Bakersfield, California ........... ..t i, 114
Concord, California . ... i e e 126
San Ramon, California ............ ..t 106
Meriden, COnnectiCUL . .. ... ... .ttt e e e et 106
Atlanta/Hapeville, Georgia .......... ... .. o 126
Boston, Massachusetts ... ... ...t e 130
Cincinnati, ORIO . ... . . e 118
Dallas, TeXas . ..ottt e e 120
Houston, Texas .. ..ot e e e e e 110
TOtal .. 1,150

Fifteen of the Company’s hotels were acquired in February 2002. The following table summarizes the location of
and number of suites at these fifteen hotels (the “Res I Portfolio”), all of which operate as part of the Residence
Inn® by Marriott® franchise system:

#of
Location of hotels Suites
Costa Mesa, California .. ...t i e e e e 144
LaJolla, California . .. ... ... ... e i et e 288
Long Beach, California .......... ... . i i e 216
Boulder, Colorado . ... ... e e 128
Atlanta-Buckhead, Georgia . ....... ... e 136
Atlanta-Cumberland, Georgia ............... ... ... i 130
Atlanta-Dunwoody, Georgia .......... ...t 144
Chicago, IIIINO0IS . ... ...t i 144
Southfield, Michigan ........ ... ... . i 144
Chesterfield, MiSSOUIT . ... ...ttt e e i 104
St. Louis-Galleria, MISSOUIT . . o vt vt e ittt et ettt e et e e et e e 152
Cincinnati, Ohio . .. ..o e e 144
Columbus, Ohio . ... .. e 96
Dayton-North, Ohio .. ... . e e 64
Dayton-South, Ohio . ... .. . 96
0 | 2,130
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Twenty-three of the Company’s hotels were acquired in August 2002. The following table summarizes the
location of and number of suites at these twenty-three hotels (the “Res II Portfolio”), all of which operate as part
of the Residence Inn® by Marriott® franchise system:

#of
Location of hotels Suites
AKron, Ohio ... o e e 112
Arcadia, California . ......... .. . . 120
Birmingham, Alabama .......... .. .. ... 128
BocaRaton, Florida ... ... i i e e 120
Boston, Massachusetts . ...t e e e 96
Charlotte, North Carolina . . ........ ..ot iiiiiiannennann e e . 91
Chicago-Deerfield, IHnois . .. ... .. . 128
Placentia, California . . .....co vt e 112
Columbia, South Carolina .........c. i it e e e s 128
Greensboro, North Carolina . ... e e 128
Irvine, California . ...t e e e e 112
Jackson, MAssiSsippl . ..o vttt 120
Jacksonville, Florida . .. .. oo e e 112
Kalamazoo, Michigan ...... ... oo it i 83
LasVegas,Nevada . . ... i e 192
Lubbock, TexXas ...ttt i i e e e e 80
Memphis, Tennessee ............ . 105
Pensacola, Florida .. ... oottt e 64
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania . ....... . ... ... 38
St. Petersburg, Florida ........ . .. 88
Santa Fe, New Mexico ... .o i i e e 120
Shreveport, Louisiana . ... ... o i 72
Spartanburg, South Carolina ........ ... ... .. 88
o 1 U 2,487

Seventeen of the Company’s hotels were acquired as a result of the merger with Apple Suites, Inc. (“Apple
Suites”) on January 31, 2003. The following table summarizes the location of and number of suites at these
seventeen hotels, all of which are operated as part of the Homewood Suites® by Hilton franchise system:

Location of hotels # of Suites
Boulder, Colorado ..o it i e e 112
Clearwater, Florida ... ... . . i e e 112
Atlanta-Buckhead, Georgia . ...... ... ... i 92
Atlanta-Cumberland, Georgia .......... ... i i i 124
Atlanta-Peachtree, Georgia ............ .ot 92
Baltimore, Maryland ... ... ... ... i e 147
Detroit, Michigan . ........... . it e 76
Jackson, MissiSSIPPI . ..ottt 91
St Louis, MISSOUIT . ..ottt i e e e e e e 145
Portland, Oregon . ... i e 123
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania .......... ... ... ... . o i i, 123
Dallas-Addison, TeXas ... ........iiiutiinit i it i 120
Dallas-Las Colinas, Texas . . ...... ... it i 136
Dallas-Plano, TeXas .. .o .ottt e e e e 99
Salt Lake City, Utah .................... e e e 98
Herndon, Virginia .. ...... ... ... 109
Richmond, Virginia . . . ...... i i e 123
Total .. e 1,922



Effective January 3, 2003, the company acquired a hotel in Redmond, Washington which has 180 suites and is
operated as part of the Residence Inn® by Marriott® franchise system.

Management Agreements

The Company’s Residence Inn hotels are subject to management agreements under which Residence Inn® by
Marriott®, Inc. (the “Manager””) manages the hotels and provides access to the Company to Marriott’s intellectual
property and proprietary sales and reservation system, generally for an initial term of 15 to 20 years with renewal
terms at the option of the Manager of up to an additional 50 years. The agreements generally provide for payment
of base management fees, which are calculated annually and are a percentage of sales, incentive management
fees over a priority return (as defined in the management agreements), system fees, marketing fees and chain
services. Incentive fees are payable only to the extent of cash flow from the properties as described in the
management agreement on a portfolio basis. The Company has three portfolios of multiple hotels and one other
hotel with separate incentive management agreements which are subject to this calculation. The Company
records deferred incentive management fee exposure when it is considered probable that these fees will be paid.
See “Expenses” under Results of Operations below for further discussion. Total expenses for 2003 and 2002 paid
to Residence Inn were $12.3 million and $8.9 million, respectively. Additionally, these agreements have
termination provisions for the Company if certain operating results are not achieved.

Promus Hotels, Inc. (“Promus”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hilton, manages day-to-day operations of the
Company’s Homewood Suites hotels. Promus charges fees for this function, which are calculated as a percentage
of revenue. Incentive management fees are calculated, for certain properties, on the basis of operating profit of
the hotels. No incentive management fees were earned in 2003. Promus also charges a fee, calculated as a
percentage of suite revenue, for franchise licenses to operate as a Homewood Suites® by Hilton and to participate
in its reservation system. Total expenses for franchise fees, management fees, advertising expenses and other
reimbursable services were approximately $7.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. These expenses
are included in the hotel operating expenses mentioned below.

Acquisitions During 2003

Redmond, Washington

Effective January 3, 2003, the Company acquired a Residence Inn ® by Marriott ® hotel in Redmond,
Washington, which contains 180 suites and was in operation when acquired. The hotel offers one and two room
suites with the amenities generally offered by upscale extended-stay hotels. It is located in a developed area near
Seattle, Washington.

The gross purchase price for the hotel was $32,550,000. This amount was satisfied at closing by cash payments
and other adjustments in the approximate amount of $12,550,000 and the assumption of existing secured debt.

AHT Redmond, Inc., a subsidiary that was formed to acquire the hotel, has assumed existing debt secured by the
hotel. The lender is The Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National Association, as Trustee for the registered holders
of GMAC Commercial Mortgage Securities, Inc., Mortgage Pass through Certificates, Series 2002-C3, as
serviced by GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corporation.

The principal balance of the assumed debt as of the closing date was approximately $20,000,000, which bore

interest at 8.375%. The debt is evidenced by a promissory note, dated November 28, 2000, in the original
principal amount of $20,500,000. The promissory note provides for a maturity date of December 1, 2025.

Apple Suites, Inc.

On January 31, 2003, Apple Suites merged with and into Hospitality Acquisition Company, the Company’s
wholly-owned subsidiary. Apple Suites owned, either directly or through its subsidiaries, a total of 17 upscale
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extended-stay hotels throughout the United States, which comprised a total of 1,922 suites, and al! of which are
operated as part of the Homewood Suitese by Hilton franchise system. The Merger did not change the
management positions Mr. Glade M. Knight held with us prior to the Merger nor did the Company’s boards of
directors’ change as a result of the Merger.

Pursuant to the Merger, each Apple Suites common share, issued and outstanding immediately prior to the
effective date of the Merger, was converted into the right to receive either: (i) one unit of the Company,
consisting of one common share of the Company and one Series A preferred share of the Company; or (ii) if the
holder of an Apple Suites common share elected, $10.00 in cash, subject to a limit on the total amount of cash to
be paid in the Merger. As a result of the Merger, holders of Apple Suites common shares received a total of
11,361,000 (valued at $8 per share for accounting purposes) Units and approximately $17.8 million in cash, and
the Company assumed Apple Suites’ liabilities and paid certain merger costs. The Company funded the cash
portion of the Merger consideration with available cash. Apple Suites assets and liabilities were recorded at fair
value and no goodwill or intangible assets were recorded in connection with the transaction.

Also in connection with this transaction, the Company terminated its advisory contract with ASA and became
self-advised. To implement the termination of the advisory agreement, The Company purchased ASA. The
Company acquired all of Mr. Glade M. Knight’s stock in ASA instead of paying a $6.48 million termination fee
due ASA under the advisory agreement. Mr. Knight received a cash payment of $2 million and a non-interest-
bearing promissory note, due four years after the Merger, in a principal amount of $4.48 million. The Company
has recognized an expense related to this transaction of $5.5 million through December 31, 2003.

In addition, 1,272,000 newly created Series C convertible preferred shares were issued in exchange for
outstanding Series B convertible preferred shares. Holders of Series B convertible preferred shares would have
otherwise been entitled to receive 1,272,000 Units upon conversion of their Series B convertible preferred shares
in connection with the termination of the advisory agreement with ASA and termination of the brokerage service
agreement with ASRG. The new Series C convertible preferred shares have a liquidation preference comparable
to the Series B convertible preferred shares, in that holders of Series C convertible preferred shares receive no
payments in a liquidation for their Series C convertible preferred shares until holders of Units are paid in full for
their Series A preferred shares. The Series C convertible preferred shares have the same voting rights and rights
to receive dividend distributions as if they had already been converted to common shares. The Company
recognized expense related to this transaction of $10,152,000 during the year ended December 31, 2003.

Related Party Transactions

The Company has significant transactions with related parties. These transactions cannot be construed to be
arm’s length and the results of the Company’s operations could be different if these transactions were conducted
with non-related parties.

Prior to January 31, 2003, the Company had contracted with ASRG to provide brokerage services for the
acquisition and disposition of the Company’s real estate assets. In accordance with the contract, ASRG was paid
a fee of 2% of the gross purchase price of any acquisitions or gross sale price of any dispositions of real estate
investments, subject to certain conditions. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, ASRG earned
$651,000 and $5,866,784, respectively, under this agreement. ASRG was owned by Mr. Glade M. Knight, the
Company’s Chairman. Concurrent with the Company’s merger with Apple Suites on January 31, 2003, the
Company’s agreement with ASRG was terminated.

The Company had contracted with ASA to advise and provide us day-to-day management services and due
diligence services on acquisitions. In accordance with the contract, the Company paid ASA a fee equal to 0.1% to
0.25% of total equity contributions the Company received in addition to certain reimbursable expenses. For the
years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, ASA earned $62,500 and $568,170, respectively, under this
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agreement. Concurrent with the Company’s merger with Apple Suites on January 31, 2003, the advisory
agreement with ASA was terminated and no further advisory fees were due under that agreement. To implement
the termination of the advisory agreement, the Company purchased ASA. The Company acquired all of Mr.
Glade M. Knight’s stock in ASA instead of paying a $6.48 million termination fee due ASA under the advisory
agreement. Mr. Knight received a cash payment of $2 million and a non-interest-bearing promissory note, due
four years after the Merger, in a principal amount of $4.48 million. Also in connection with the Merger and the
termination of the advisory agreement with ASA, the Company’s outstanding Series B convertible preferred
shares were exchanged for 1,272,000 newly created Series C convertible preferred shares which have the same
voting and dividend rights as if they had already been converted into 1,272,000 common shares.

The Company has an advisory agreement with Apple Hospitality Five Advisors, Inc., whereas the Company
receives advisory fee revenue equal to 0.1% to 0.25% of total equity contributions received by Apple Hospitality
Five, Inc., plus certain reimbursable expenses in exchange for Company personnel performing advisory and real
estate acquisition due diligence for Apple Hospitality Five, Inc. The Company received advisory fee revenue in
the amount of $296,435 under this agreement during the year ended December 31, 2003.

Mr. Knight also serves as the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Cornerstone Realty Income Trust, Inc.,
an apartment REIT. Mr. Knight was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Apple Suites prior to the Merger
with it. (Refer to the “Acquisition of Apple Suites, Inc.” section above for further information about the merger
with Apple Suites), and Mr. Knight is Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of Apple Hospitality
Five, Inc.

Results of Operations for Years 2003 and 2002

The Company’s operating results were impacted by two significant events during 2003. First the lodging industry
as a whole experienced a decline due to an overall decline in economic conditions throughout the United States.
As reflected in the analysis below, Apple’s results were impacted by this overall industry decline. Second, the
Company began a major renovation effort for 13 of its hotels during 2003. As a result periodically throughout the
renovation process rooms at the individual hotels were taken out of service in order to perform the renovation,
thus reducing the operating results for that hotel. The Company plans to continue its renovation efforts during
2004 with an additional 12 hotels scheduled for renovation in 2004.

Revenues

The Company’s principal source of revenue is hotel suite revenue. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002, the Company had suite revenue and other revenue of $189,599,903 and $6,205,954 and $102,895,689 and
$3,324,1135, respectively. The increase in revenues is attributable to the acquisition of the Redmond hotel; the
Company’s merger with Apple Suites, Inc; and the revenues associated with a full year of operations for the
Company’s other hotel properties. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the hotels achieved average
occupancy of 74% and 78%, ADR of $91 and $92 and REVPAR of $67 and $71, respectively. ADR, or average
daily rate, is calculated as room revenue divided by number of rooms sold, and REVPAR, or revenue per
available room, is calculated as occupancy multiplied by ADR. The decrease in occupancy, ADR and REVPAR
for the years ended December 31, 2003 is related to the Company’s major renovation program at its hotel
properties and a general industry decline due to economic conditions throughout the U.S. During the renovations
program, suites are taken out of service while renovations are completed. The Company estimates approximately
54,000 room nights were out of service in 2003.

For the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company had interest income of $840,681 and $1,292,925,
respectively. Interest income represents earnings on excess cash, invested in short term money market
instruments.
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Expenses

The Company’s hotel operating expenses totaled $49,999,662 or 26% of suite revenue and $24,816,733 or 24%
of suite revenue for the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The reduction of REVPAR has
increased hotel operating expenses on a percentage of revenue basis due primarily to lower ADR and to fixed
costs associated with operating a hotel.

The Company’s general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 were
$1,948,134 or 1% of suite revenue and $1,943,257 or 2% of suite revenue, respectively. This percentage
decreased as the Company’s asset base grew during 2003.

Taxes, insurance and other expense for the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 was $12,762,914 or 7% of
suite revenue and $6,578,038 or 6% of suite revenue, respectively.

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 was $19,264,109 and $7,561,545,
respectively. Depreciation expense for 2003 represents expense of the Company’s 66 hotels and related personal
property, as well as a full year of renovations; and expense for 2002 represents expense of 48 hotels and related
personal property owned at December 31, 2002. The Company’s capital expenditures increased from $6.8
million in 2002 to $48.6 million in 2003, as part of a major renovation program.

Interest expense was $25,545,677 and $13,402,143 for the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 respectively.
Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2003, represents interest on the 8.08%, $53 million promissory
note assumed in conjunction with the Crestline acquisition, interest expense on the refinance of the Res 1
Partnership acquisition debt in the amount of $83 million at a fixed interest rate of 7.4%, interest expense on the
8.85%, $130 million promissory note assumed in conjunction with the Res II Partnership acquisition, interest
expense on the $20 million Redmond acquisition at 8.375% and Apple Suites debt of $76 million at and average
rate of 8.4%. Interest expense also includes approximately $2.5 million in amortization of the Company’s fair
value adjustment, and amortization of the premivm on the Company’s note payable to Glade M. Knight, as
discussed under Related Party Transactions above. Interest for the year ended December 31, 2002 represented the
Crestline mortgage, Res I mortgages, and Res II mortgages, as well as an adjustment for early extinguishment of
debt related to the Res I mortgage.

The Company incurred approximately $15.9 million in expenses in 2003 related to the Apple Suites merger. The
expenses include approximately $10.2 million associated with the conversion of the series B convertible
preferred shares to series C convertible shares and $5.5 million associated with the termination of the advisory
agreement with ASA.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company capitalized interest of $1.6 million related to suites out
of service for renovations. No interest was capitalized in 2002.

Residence Inn Hotels

The Company’s Residence Inn hotels are subject to management agreements under which Residence Inne by
Marriotts, Inc. (the “Manager”) manages the hotels, generally for an initial term of 15 to 20 years with renewal
terms at the option of the Manager of up to an additional 50 years. The agreements generally provide for payment
of base management fees, which are calculated annually and are a percentage of sales, incentive management
fees over a priority return (as defined in the management agreements), system fees, marketing fees and chain
services. Incentive management fees are currently payable only if and to the extent there is sufficient cash flow
from the hotels after consideration of qualifying debt service and after consideration to a priority return on
investment, including property improvements. Amounts not currently payable are deferred and are payable in
future years only if and to the extent there is sufficient cash flow from future operations or upon sale or
refinancing of the hotels after consideration to a priority return to us (as defined in the management agreements),
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which is generally 12%. In the event of early termination of the management agreements, the Manager will
receive additional fees based on the unexpired term and expected future base and incentive management fees.
The Company has the option to terminate the management agreements if specified performance thresholds are
not satisfied. System fees, marketing fees and chain services are based primarily on revenue and compensate
Marriott for the use of their intellectual property, reservation and accounting systems and corporate personnel.
Total fees paid in 2003 and 2002 were $12.3 million and $8.9 million, respectively.

Incentive fees are payable on a portfolio by portfolio basis for Residence Inn properties. The Company has three
_portfolios of multiple hotels and one other hotel with separate management agreements which are subject to this
calculation. The Company records incentive management fee exposure when it is considered probable that these
fees will be paid. The Company has recorded the full amount of deferred incentive management fees on the Res
II portfolio and Redmond hotel. The Company has not recorded any deferred incentive management fees for the
Res I and Res II portfolios.

The Company acquired its Residence Inn hotels in separate transactions, (Res I ~ purchased February 2002, Res
Il - purchased August 28, 2002, and Res III - purchased September 2001). In the Res I and Res II purchases, the
Company assumed the amended and restated management agreements in effect with the Manager by the prior
owner and assumed deferred incentive management fees totaling $6.7 million and $7.0 million, respectively, at
the date of the respective acquisitions. Additionally, the Company assumed the cost basis of $187 million and
$243 million for Res I and Res II, respectively, and the holding period of the prior owner for purposes of
calculating the priority returns upon sale of the properties. The Company paid approximately $133 million and
$160 million for Res I and Res II, respectively.

The following table summarizes deferred incentive management fees (“DIMF”) under these management
agreements (dollars in millions).

IMF

Accumulated 2003 Amount accrued

DIMF Post- Total IMF  Total in Consolidated

Assumed  Acquisition IMF Paid DIMF Balance Sheet

ResI ... i $67. $4.9 $11.6 $0.0 $11.6 $0.0
ResIl ... .. 7.0 2.4 94 0.0 9.4 0.0
ResHI ... ... . . .. .. 0.0 0.7 07 0.0 0.7 0.7
Redmond ....... O 0.0 E 0.5 g 0.0 iQ
Total ... $13.7 $85  $222 $05 $21.7 $0.7

No amounts of DIMF were recorded upon the acquisition of Res [ and Res I as the fair value of these amounts
were not readily determinable and payment was not considered probable.

The Company is obligated to escrow funds, generally 5% of revenue, to cover the cost of replacements and
renewals to the hotels’ property and improvements. The lessees are obligated under these management
agreements to fund FF&E requirements in excess of amounts placed in restricted cash accounts. At December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively, the lessee had FF&E escrow balances of $15,912,950 and $18,640,007.

Homewood Suites Hotels

The Company’s 17 Homewood Suites hotels are managed by Promus Hotels, Inc. (“Promus”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Hilton Hotels Corporation (“Hilton”) under the terms of a management agreement, as part of the
Homewood Suitese by Hilton franchise.

Promus manages day-to-day operations of the Company’s Homewood Suites hotels. Promus charges fees for this
function, which are calculated as a percentage of revenue. Incentive management fees are calculated, for certain
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properties, on the basis of operating profit of the hotels. No incentive management fees were earned in 2003.
Promus also charges a fee, calculated as a percentage of suite revenue, for franchise licenses to operate as a
Homewood Suitese by Hilton and to participate in its reservation system. Total expenses for franchise fees,
management fees, advertising expenses and other reimbursable services were $7,584,591 for the year ended
December 31, 2003. These expenses are included in the hotel operating expenses mentioned above.

The Company is committed under management agreements to fund up to 5% of gross revenues for capital
expenditures to include periodic replacement or refurbishment of furniture, fixtures, and equipment. At
December 31, 2003, Promus held approximately $600,000 for these capital improvement reserves.

Results of Operations for Years 2002 and 2001
Revenues

The Company’s principal source of revenue is hotel suite revenue. For the year ended December 31, 2002 and
the period September 7, 2001 through December 31, 2001, the Company had suite revenue and other revenue of
$102,895,689 and $10,022,272, and $3,324,115 and $414,493, respectively. The increase in revenues is
attributable to the acquisitions of 38 hotels in 2002, as well as the full year of operations of the ten properties
acquired in 2001. For those same periods, the hotels achieved average occupancy of 78% and 76%, ADR of $92
and $102 and REVPAR of $71 and $78, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2002 and the period January 17, 2001 through December 31, 2001, the
Company had interest income of $1,292,925 and $2,005,006, respectively. Interest income for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2002 represents excess cash, invested in short term money market instruments; whereas
interest income for the period January 17, 2001 through December 31, 2001 represents excess cash, invested in
short term money market instruments and interest earned from the 12% promissory note with Crestline Capital
Corporation.

Expenses

Interest expense was $13,402,354 and $1,371,540, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2002 and the
period January 17, 2001 through December 31, 2001. Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2002,
represents interest on the 8.08%, $53 million promissory note assumed in conjunction with the Crestline
acquisition, interest expense on the 8.6%, $71 million promissory note and 15.25%, $21 million promissory note
assumed in conjunction with the Res I Partnership acquisition, interest expense on the refinance of the Res I
Partnership acquisition debt in the amount of $83 million at a fixed interest rate of 7.4%, and interest expense on
the 8.85%, $130 million promissory note assumed in conjunction with the Res II Partnership acquisition. Interest
expense for the period January 17, 2001 through December 31, 2001 represents interest on the 8.08% $53 million
promissory note.

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2002 and the period January 17, 2001 through December
31, 2001 was $7,561,545 and $1,084,933, respectively. Depreciation expense for 2002 represents expense of the
Company’s 48 hotels and related personal property, and expense for 2001 represents expense of the 10 hotels and
related personal property for September 7, 2001 through December 31, 2002.

Taxes, insurance and other expense for the year ended December 31, 2002 and the period January 17, 2001
through December 31, 2001 was $6,578,038 or 6% of suite revenue and $552,734 or 6% of suite revenue,
respectively.

General and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2002 and for the period January 17, 2001
through December 31, 2001 were $1,943,257 or 2% of suite revenue and $491,009 or 5% of suite revenue,

respectively. This percentage decreased as our asset base grew during 2002.
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Hotel operating expenses totaled $24,816,733 or 24% of suite revenue and $2,262,543 or 23% of suite revenue
for the year ended December 31, 2002 and the period January 17, 2001 through December 31, 2001, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Amonnt of Commitment expiring per period

Less than 1- Over §
Commercial Commitments (000’s) Total 1 year 2-3Years 4-5 Years Years
Note payable-related party ...................... $§ 4480 $ — § — $ 4480 —
Total Debt Commitments (including approximately
$202,066 ininterest) .. ... ... $555,880  $37,260 $184,949 $46,656 $287,024
Total Commercial Commitments ............. $560,369 $37,260 $184,949 $51,136 $287,024

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents totaled $17,296,109 at December 31, 2003 and $125,521,805 at December 31, 2002.
The Company plans to use this cash for renovations, distributions to shareholders, debt service and to fund
general corporate expenses.

Equity

From the initial closing under the Company’s first offering, through the Company’s second offering and the year
ended December 31, 2003, the Company sold 30,157,931 Units (3,157,895 Units at $9.50 per unit and
27,000,036 Units at $10 per unit) to investors. The total gross proceeds from the Units sold were $300,000,360
which netted us $268,131,348 after the payment of selling commissions and other offering costs.

Pursuant to the Merger, each Apple Suites common share, issued and outstanding immediately prior to the
effective date of the Merger, was converted into the right to receive either: (i) one unit of the Company,
consisting of one common share of the Company and one Series A preferred share of the Company; or (ii) if the
holder of an Apple Suites common share elected, $10.00 in cash, subject to a limit on the total amount of cash to
be paid in the Merger. As a result of the Merger, holders of Apple Suites common shares received a total of
11,361,000 Units and approximately $17.8 million in cash, and the Company assumed Apple Suites’ liabilities
and paid certain merger costs. The Company funded the cash portion of the Merger consideration with available
cash.

_In addition, 1,272,000 newly created Series C convertible preferred shares were issued in exchange for
outstanding Series B convertible preferred shares. Holders of Series B convertible preferred shares would have
otherwise been entitled to receive 1,272,000 Units upon conversion of their Series B convertible preferred shares
in connection with the termination of the advisory agreement with ASA and termination of the brokerage service
agreement with ASRG. The new Series C convertible preferred shares have a liquidation preference comparable
to the Series B convertible preferred shares, in that holders of Series C convertible preferred shares receive no
payments in a liquidation for their Series C convertible preferred shares until holders of Units are paid in full for
their Series A preferred shares. The Series C convertible preferred shares have the same voting rights and rights
to receive dividend distributions as if they had already been converted to common shares.

The Company instituted a Unit Redemption Program to provide limited interim liquidity to the Company’s
shareholders. Redemption of Units, when requested, is made quarterly on a first-come, first-serve basis.
Shareholders may request redemption of Units for a purchase price equal to the lesser of: (1) the purchase price
per unit that the shareholder actually paid for the unit (or the price that the shareholder actually paid for the
Apple Suites, Inc. common shares, if the Units were acquired through the exchange of Apple Suites, Inc.
common shares in the Company’s merger with Apple Suites, Inc.); or (2) $10.00 per unit. The Company reserves
the right to change the purchase price of redemptions, reject any request for redemption, or otherwise amend the
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terms of, suspend, or terminate the Unit Redemption Program. As of December 31, 2003, the Company had
redeemed 875,357 shares in the amount of $8,690,335.

In February 2004, the Company initiated a dividend reinvestment plan which will provide additional liquidity for
the Company and a cost effective way for shareholders to continue to invest in the Company.

Notes Payable
Total Notes Payable

The aggregate amounts of principal payable under all of the Company’s promissory notes, for the five years
subsequent to Pecember 31, 2003 are as follows:

Total

2004 . e $ 6,916,154
2005 7,612,510
2006 . e e e e 127,654,864
2007 L 5,669,699
2008 . e e 6,240,756
Thereafter . ... ... ...ttt e e 199,728,978
353,822,961

Fair Value Adjustment of Assumed Debt ................. ... ... ... 8,939,757
$362,762,718

Notes payable consists of the following:

Res I Portfolio

The Company has a secured note in the amount of $82 million. The term of the note is 10 years with a 25 year
amortization. The note bears interest at the fixed rate of 7.4% per annum and payments are made in monthly
installments, of principal and interest. The loan matures in October 2012 with an aggregate balloon payment of
approximately $67 million. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2003 was approximately $81.7 million.

Res II Portfolio

The Company has a secured note in the amount of approximately $128 miilion. The note bears interest at the
fixed rate of 8.85% per annum and matures in March 2006 with an aggregate balloon payment of approximately
$122 million. The note is payable in monthly installments of principal and interest. The outstanding balance at
December 31, 2003 was approximately $127.7 million.

Res 111 Portfolio

The Company has a secured note in the amount of approximately $50 million. The note bears a fixed interest rate
of 8.08% per annum. The maturity date is January 2010, with a balloon payment of $35.4 million. The loan is
payable in monthly installments, including principal and interest. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2003
was approximately $49.5 million.

Redmond

The Company has a secured note in the amount of approximately $20,000,000. The note provides for an
applicable interest rate of 8.375%, subject to certain adjustments, which include the following: (a) an increase of
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2% beginning on the optional prepayment date, and (b) an increase of 5% upon any event of default. The note
requires consecutive monthly payments of principal and interest in the amount of $163,348. The note matures in
December 2025. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2003 was approximately $19.7 million.

Apple Suites
In conjunction with the acquisition of Apple Suites, the Company assumed the following secured notes:

* A secured note with an original principal amount of $9.5 million that bears interest at 8.3% per annum
and is secured by two hotels. The note is amortized over 25 years and matures in January 2012.
Payments of principal and interest are made monthly. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2003
was approximately $9.3 million.

* A secured note with an original principal amount of $7.5 million that bears interest at 8.14% per annum
and is secured by one hotel. The note is amortized over 25 years and matures in September 2011.
Payments of principal and interest are made monthly. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2003
was $7.3 million.

» A secured note with an original principal amount of $10.7 million that bears interest at 8.15% per
annum and is secured by one hotel. The note is amortized over 25 years and matures in June 2011.
Payments of principal and interest are made monthly. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2003
was $10.4 million.

« A secured note with an original principal amount of $50 million that bears interest at 9% per annum and
is secured by 11 hotels. The note is amortized over 25 years and matures on September 2010. Payments
of principal and interest are made monthly. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2003 was $48.2
million,

Capital Requirements

The Company’s distribution policy is at the discretion of the Board of Directors and depends on several factors.
The distribution rate for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 was at a quarterly rate of $0.25 per unit
outstanding, respectively. Excluding a special dividend of $.50 per share in January 2003.

In January 2003, the Company paid a distribution of $.25 per share to common shareholders, which was declared
in the fourth quarter of 2002, resulting in cash distributed of approximately $7.3 million.

In January 2003, the Company declared a special distribution related to the acquisition of Apple Suites, of $0.497
per share to shareholders of record on January 20, 2003. The dividend, which approximated $15 million, was
paid on February 3, 2003.

In April 2003, the Company declared and paid a distribution of $.25 per share to common and Series C preferred
convertible shareholders resulting in cash distributed of approximately $10.7 million.

In July 2003, the Company declared and paid a distribution of $.25 per share to common and Series C preferred
convertible shareholders resulting in cash distributed of approximately $10.7 million.

In October 2003, the Company declared and paid a distribution of $.25 per share to common and Series C
preferred convertible shareholders resulting in cash distributed of approximately $10.6 million.

In January 2004 the Company declared and paid a distribution of $.25 per share to common and Series C
preferred shareholders resulting in cash distributed of approximately $10.5 million.

As a result of the Company’s decline in operating income in 2003 and its major investment in hotel renovations,
it is anticipated the Company will reevaluate its dividend policy in 2004.
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Capital Resources

The Company has ongoing capital commitments to fund the Company’s capital improvements. The Company is
required, under all three management agreements with the Manager, to make available, for the repair,
replacement and refurbishing of furniture, fixtures, and equipment, an amount of 5% of gross revenues provided
that such amount may be used for the Company’s capital expenditures with respect to the hotels.

As a result of the Company’s renovation program the Company expects it will fund approximately $20 million in
addition to the 5% requirement in 2004. During 2003, the Company capitalized approximately $49 million in
capital improvements to the properties. Of that amount, approximately $40 million relates to the Company’s
major renovation program and approximately $9 million relates to the Company’s normal furniture, fixtures and
equipment expenditures. To fund its renovation projects the Company is currently working on obtaining an
additional credit facility. The Company plans on renovating an additional twelve hotels in 2004. It is anticipated
cash from operations will be used to fund principal payments on its existing secured financing and distributions
to shareholders. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain the credit facility or have
enough funds from operations to fund its debt and distributions.

Impact of Inflation

Operators of hotels, in general, possess the ability to adjust room rates daily to reflect the effects of inflation.
Competitive pressures may, however, limit the operators’ ability to raise room rates. Currently the Company is
not experiencing any material impact from inflation.

Seasonality

The hotel industry historically has been seasonal in nature. Seasonal variations in occupancy at the hotels may
cause quarterly fluctuations in revenues. To the extent that cash flow from operations is insufficient during any
quarter, due to temporary or seasonal fluctuations in revenue, the Company expects to utilize cash on hand to
make distributions and required debt service

The Company believes liquidity and capital resources are adequate to meet cash requirements for the foreseeable
future.

Critical Accounting Policies

The following contains a discussion of what the Company believes to be critical accounting policies. These items
should be read to gain a further understanding of the principles used to prepare the Company’s financial
statements. These principals include application of judgment; therefore, changes in judgments may have a
significant impact on the Company’s reported results of operations and financial condition.

Capitalization Policy

The Company considers expenditures to be capital in nature based on the following criteria: 1) For a single asset,
the cost must be at least $300, including all normal and necessary costs to place the asset in service, and the
useful life must be at least one year. 2) For group purchases of 10 or more identical assets, the unit cost for each
asset must be at least $50, with the aggregate cost of the group purchase being at least $750, including all normal
and necessary costs to place the asset in service, and the useful life must be at least one year. 3) For major repairs
to buildings, furniture, fixtures and equipment, the repair must be at least $2,000, and the useful life of the asset
must be substantially extended.
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Impairment Losses Policy

The Company records impairment losses on hotel properties used in operations if indicators of impairment are
present, and the sum of the discounted cash flows estimated to be generated by the respective properties are less
than the properties’ carrying amounts. Impairment losses are measured as the difference between the asset’s fair
value less cost to sell, and its carrying value. No impairment losses have been recorded to date.

Investment Policy

The purchase price of real estate properties acquired is allocated to the various compoaents, such as land,
buildings and improvements, intangible assets and in-place leases as appropriate, in accordance with Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards, commonly referred to as SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations”. The
purchase price is allocated based on the fair value of each component at the time of acquisition. We generally do
not acquire real estate assets that have in-place leases as lease terms for hotel propertics are very short term in
nature. We have not allocated any purchase price to intangible assets such as managerient contracts and
franchise agreements as such contracts are generally at current market rates and any other value attributable to
these contracts are not considered material.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement for Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangibles,”
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. Under new rules, goodwill and intangible assets
deemed to have indefinite lives will no longer be amortized but will be subject to annual impairment tests in
accordance with the Statements. Other intangible assets will continue to be amortized over their useful lives. The
Company adopted these new accounting standards beginning the first quarter of fiscal 2002. The adoption of
these standards did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In April 2002, the FASB issued Statement 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment
of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Correction” (“SFAS No. 145”). Statement 4, “Reporting Gains and
Losses from Extinguishment of Debt” (“SFAS No. 4”), required that gains and losses from the extinguishment of
debt that were included in the determination of net income be aggregated and, if material, classified as an
extraordinary item. The Company reported the early extinguishment of the Res I debt as an extraordinary item
for 2002 in the amount of $273,789. The provisions of SFAS No. 145, related to the rescission of SFAS No. 4,
required us to reclassify this item into continuing operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements
for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” This staterrent requires that a liability
for the fair value of a guarantee be recognized at the time the obligation is undertaken. The statement also
requires that the liability be measured over the term of the related guarantee. This statzment is effective for all
guarantees entered into subsequent to December 31, 2002. For all guarantees entered into prior to December 31,
2002, there is to be no change in accounting; however, disclosure of management’s estimate of its future
obligation under the guarantee is to be made. The company currently does not have any guarantee obligations to
which Interpretation 45 applies.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” (“FIN 46”)
which was revised in December 2003, and is effective immediately for all transactions entered into with variable
interest entities after February 2003. The provisions of FIN 46 must be applied to all remaining entities subject to
the Interpretation from the beginning of the first quarter of 2004. This statement defines the identification process
of variable interest entities and how an entity assesses its interest in a variable interest entity to decide whether to
consolidate that entity. The Company has formed wholly-owned subsidiaries for financing purposes and such
financing is reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Currently, the Company does not anticipate this
Statement having a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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In May 2003, the FASB issued Statement 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS No. 150 impacts the accounting for minority interests in
limited life subsidiaries and requires that those interests be reclassified to liabilities and measured at settlement
value. The effective date of SFAS No. 150 has been deferred for an indefinite period. The application of

SFAS No. 150 is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s financial statements as the
Company does not currently have any limited life subsidiaries.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The Company’s market risk is exposure to changes in mortgage interest rates related to the assumption of the
mortgage note and interest rates on short-term investments. The interest rates of the debt related to the Res I, Res
II, and Res I portfolios, AHT Redmond and Apple Suites are fixed at 7.4%, 8.85%, 8.08%, 8.375% and 8.48%,
respectively. The following table shows, in millions, the impact to the fair value of the Company’s fixed-rate
debt if market interest rates for fixed-rate debt were 100 basis points higher or lower at December 31, 2003 and
December 31, 2002:

Fair value at Fair value of Fair value of

December 31, debt + 100 debt - 100
(Millions) 2003 Balance basis points basis points
ResI ... $ 81.7 $ 773 $ 874
ResIl ....... ... . .. 130.9 129.5 134.4
ResIIl ... .. . .. 49.5 475 51.6
Redmond .......... ... ... ... ... ..., 21.2 19.9 23.5
Apple Suites . ............ i 79.4 76.5 84.5

Fair value at Fair value of  Fair value of

December 31, debt + 100 debt - 100
M 2002 Balance basis points basis points
ResT .o $ 828 $ 78.1 $ 89.2
ResIl ... e 135.0 132.0 139.0
ResIII ... i i 51.2 49.0 53.9
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Apple Hospitality T'wo, Inc. (the “Company™)
as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of operationis, shareholders’ equity,
and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 and for the period frora January 17, 2001 (initial
capitalization) through December 31, 2001. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the
Index of Item 15(a). These financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, irn all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 and for
the period January 17, 2001 (initial capitalization) through December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule,
when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material
respects the information set forth therein.

/s/ Emst & Young LLP

Richmond, Virginia
February 27, 2004
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Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands except per share data)

ASSETS
Investment in hotels, net of accumulated depreciation of $27,705 and
$8,646, respectively . ... ...
Cashand cashequivalents .......... ... ... ... ... . oo,
Restricted cash:
Furniture, fixtures & equipment reserves ....................
Debt service & otherescrows ........ .. .. oot
Distributions held for prior limited partners ..................
Due from third party manager, net ......... ... ... ... ...
Deferred financing costs,net . ...t
Otherassets ...... ...t s

TOTAL ASSETS .. ..

LIABILITIES
Notes payable-secured .. ...... ... .. it
Note payable-related party ............. i,
Accounts payable & accrued expenses ............... ...
Accounts payable-prior limited partners ............... ... ... ...,
Due to third party manager .. ............. it
Interest payable ......... ... ...
Distributions payable . ....... ... ... .
Deferred incentive management fees payable .......... ... ... ...,

TOTAL LIABILITIES ... ... ... ... . i

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Preferred stock, no par value, 15,000,000 authorized, none issued and
outstanding .. ... ...

Series A Preferred stock, no par value, authorized 200,000,000 shares;
40,644,638 and 30,157,931 shares issued and outstanding,
rESpeCtiVEly . ...

Series B preferred convertible stock, no par value, authorized 240,000
shares; issued and outstanding — and 24,000 shares, respectively ..

Series C preferred convertible stock, no par value, authorized
1,272,000; issued and outstanding 1,272,000 and — shares,
respectively . ... e

Common stock, no par value, authorized 200,000,000 shares; issued
and outstanding 40,644,638 shares, and 30,157,931 shares,
Tespectively .. ... e

Distributions greater thannetincome ...........................

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’EQUITY ............... ..ot
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY ..........

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,2003 December 31, 2002

$638,658 $388,034
17,296 125,522
16,513 18,640
8,410 7,350
8,815 10,587

— 2,874
1,068 1,192

__ 1,333 393
$692,113 $557,754
$362,763 $269,297
3,595 156
3,648 5,439
8,815 10,587

2,377 —

1,280 1,319

— 7,259

715 715
383,193 294,772
— 24

10,176 —

349,406 268,131
(50,662) (5,173)
308,920 262,982
$692,113 $557,754



Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except per share data)

For the period
Year ended Year ended: January 17, 2001 through
December 31,2003 December 31, 22002 December 31, 2001
REVENUES
SUE TEVENUE ..o oot e $189,600 $102,89¢ $10,022
Otherrevenue . .........oviiinnnnnnnnn. ﬂ __22_4: 415
Totalrevenues ........... ..., 195,806 106,220 10,437
EXPENSES
Hotel operating expense ... ............... 50,000 24,817 2,262
Hotel administrative expense .............. 18,315 11,865 1,069
Sales and marketing ..................... 14,068 5,976 482
Utilities ....... .. 9,735 4,554 423
Repair & maintenance ................... 11,539 3,027 280
Franchisefees .......... ... ... ... ... ... 7,661 4,092 401
Managementfees ....................... 5,070 3,094 474
Chain Services . .. ..o vi i iniee e ann 3,327 1,736 234
Taxes, insurance andother ................ 12,763 6,578 553
Merger expense-related party .............. 15,914 — —
General and administrative . . . ............. 1,948 1,943 491
Depreciation of real-estate owned .......... _1_9,_2_6:4_ 7,562’: _1,_08_5_
Total expenses ........... ... i, 169,604 75,244 7,754
Operating inCome . ...............vven... 26,202 30,976 2,683
Interestincome ........ ... ... ... 841 1,293 2,005
Interestexpense ..............coienvn.n. (25,546) (13,401;) (1,371)
NEtINCOME . ...t it e $ 1,497 $ 18,86‘[ $ 3,317
Basic and diluted income per common share . . . . .. $ 0.04 $ 083 $ 052
Weighted average shares outstanding ........... 41,421 21,557 6,334
Distributions paid per common share . ........... $ 1.50 $ 1o $ 050

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Balance at January 17, 2001,
initjal capitalization
Net proceeds from the sale of
common shares . ..........
Common shares issued through
reinvestment of
distributions
Issuance of Series B preferred
convertible shares . ........
Netincome ................
Cash distributions declared to
shareholders ($.75 per
share)

Balance at December 31,
2001
Net proceeds from the sale of
common shares .. .........
Common shares issued through
reinvestment of
distributions
Netincome ................
Cash distributions declared to
shareholders ($1.00 per
share)

Balance at December 31,
2002

Common shares redeemed . . ..

Common shares issued through
merger with Apple Suites,

Series B preferred convertible
shares issued through merger
with Apple Suites, Inc. .. ...

Sertes C preferred convertible
shares issued through merger
with Apple Suites, Inc. . . ...

Netincome ................

Cash distributions declared to
shareholders ($1.25 per
share)

Balance at December 31,
2003

Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
(in thousands)

Series B Preferred

Series C Preferred

. . Distributions
Convertible Stock Convertible Stock Common Stock Greater Total
Number of Number of Number of than Shareholders’
Shares  Amount  Shares  Amount  Shares Amount  Net income Equity
— $§ — — $ — — $ — $ — $§ —
— — —_ — 13,791 121,835 — 121,835
— — — — 117 1,054 — 1,054
240 24 — — — —_ — 24
— — — — — — 3,317 3,317
— — — — — — (5,769) (5,769)
240 24 — — 13,908 122,889 (2,452) 120,461
— — — — 15,507 137,807 — 137,807
_ _ — — 743 7,435 — 7,435
— — — — — — 18,867 18,867
—_ — —_— — — — (21,588) (21,588)
240 24 — — 30,158 268,131 (5,173) 262,982
— — —_ —_ (874) (8,832) — (8,832)
— — — — 11,361 90,107 — 90,107
(240) 24) — — —_ — — 24)
— — 1,272 10,176 — — — 10,176
— —_ — — — — 1,497 1,497
. _ — — — — (46,986) (46,986)
$§ — 1,272 $10,176 40,645 $349,406 $(50,662) $308,920

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

For the period
Year ended Year endec! January 17, 2001 through
December 31,2003 December 31, 1002 December 31, 2001

Cash flow from operating activities:

NEINCOME .+ .o ettt ettt et et $ 1,497 $ 18,867 $ 3,317
Adjustments to reconcile to cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation ...t e 19,264 7,562 1,085
Net amottization of fair value adjustment to mortgage notes
payable ... ... (2,506) (722) (289)
Amortization of deferred financing costs ................... 124 32 —
Imputedinterest .. ........ ot — 450 —
Non-cash portion of merger relatedexpense . ................ 13,576 — —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of amounts
acquired/assumed:
Due from third party manager .................... 7,030 (2,014 —
Deferred incentive managementfee ............... — 510 204
Debt service and other escrows ................... (201) (721) —
Otherassets . ...t iiiinnrnan 66 (1,268} 102
Account payable-affiliate ....................... (18) (105) 261
Accruedinterest .. ... ... .. i (39) 952 368
Accrued eXPENSES .. ... (2,870) 460 (354)
Net cash provided by operating activities ....... 35,923 24,003 4,694

Cash flow from investing activities:
Decrease (increase) in cash restricted for capital

IMPIOVEIMENS . o oot e e e e e e e e ae e 2,399 (5,223) (862)
Net cash paid for hotel acquisitions ................... (12,550) (13,422) (72,483)
Net cash paid for acquisition of Apple Suites, Inc. and

Apple Suites Advisors .. ... (15,341) — —
Capital improvements ..............ocveenenreven.. (48,326) (6,803) (573)
Deposits on capital improvement projects .............. 2,136 (2,809) —
Deposit for potential acquisition ............. ... ..... — — (35,000)

Net cash used in investing activities ........... (71,682) (28,257) (108,918)

Cash flow from financing activities:

Proceeds from mortgage notes payable ... .............. — 83,00 —
Redemption of commonstock . .......... ... .. 0., (8,832) — —
Repayment of unsecured lineof credit . ................ (3,000) — —
Capital lease obligations-principal amounts ............. — (36¢) @n
Payment of financing costs ............. ... ... — (1,22¢) —
Repayment of secured notes payable .................. (6,391) (95,01%) (382)
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock ........... — 145,242, 122913
Cash distributions paid to shareholders . .. .............. (54,244) (17,331) (2,767)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing
activities . ... e (72,467) 114,307 119,693
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents . ... (108,226) 110,053 15,469
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period .............. 125,522 15,469 —
Cash and cash equivalents,end of period ................... $ 17,296 $125,5222 $ 15,469
Supplemental information:
Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized ................ $ 27,146 $ 13,402 $ 1,004
Non-cash transactions:
Other assets assumed in acquisitions . . ................. $ 1,779 $ — $ —
Escrows assumed in acquisitions ..................... $ 1,131 $ 15,934 $ 388
Assumption of mortgage notes payable ................ $ 102,363 $229,155 $ 53,256
Deposit for acquisitions used for acquisition of hotels . . . .. — $ 35,000 3 —
Issuance of common Stock .. ... ..o $ 90,107 £ — $ —
Conversion of Series B preferred convertible shares to
Series C preferred convertible shares ................ $ 10,200 $ — 3 —
Liabilities assumed in acquisition ..................... $ 4,136 $ 4,137 $ 769

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1

General Information and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization

Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. (the “Company”), a Virginia corporation, was formed on January 17, 2001, with the
first investor closing on May 1, 2001. The Company merged with Apple Suites, Inc. on January 31, 2003 and
results of Apple Suites operations are included in Company results from February 1, 2003. The consolidated
financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All significant inter-company
transactions and balances have been eliminated upon consolidation.

The REIT Modernization Act, effective January 1, 2001, permits real estate investment trusts (“REIT”) to
establish taxable businesses to conduct certain previously disallowed business activities. The Company has
formed a wholly-owned taxable REIT subsidiary, Apple Hospitality Management, Inc., and has leased all of its
hotels to Apple Hospitality Management, Inc. or its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Lessee”).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. The
fair market value of cash and cash equivalents approximate their carrying value. Cash equivalents are placed with
high credit quality institutions and the balances may, at times, exceed federal depository insurance limits,

Investments in hotels

The hotels are stated at cost, net of depreciation, and include real estate brokerage commissions paid to Apple
Suites Realty Group, Inc. (a related party) and other due-diligence costs reimbursed to Apple Suites Advisors
(also a related party) (see Note 7). Repair and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred while significant
improvements, renovations, and replacements are capitalized. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method over estimated useful lives of the assets, which are 39 years for buildings and major improvements and
three to seven years for furniture and equipment.

The Company considers expenditures to be capital in nature based on the following criteria: 1) For a single asset,
the cost must be at least $300, including all normal and necessary costs to place the asset in service, and the
useful life must be at least one year; 2) For group purchases of 10 or more identical assets, the unit cost for each
asset must be at least $50, with the aggregate cost of the group purchase being at least $750, including all normal
and necessary costs to place the asset in service, and the useful life must be at least one year; 3) For major repairs
to buildings, furniture, fixtures and equipment, the repair must be at least $2,000, and the useful life of the asset
must be substantially extended.

The Company records impairment losses on hotel properties used in the operations if indicators of impairment
are present, and the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by the respective properties are less than
their carrying amount. Impairment losses are measured as the difference between the asset’s fair value less cost
to sell, and its carrying value. No impairment losses have been recorded to date.

The purchase price of real estate properties acquired is allocated to the various components, such as land,
buildings and improvements, intangible assets and in-place leases as appropriate, in accordance with Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards, commonly referred to as SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations”. The
purchase price is allocated based on the fair value of each component at the time of acquisition. The Company
generally does not acquire real estate assets that have in-place leases as lease terms for hotel properties are very
short term in nature. The Company has not allocated any purchase price to intangible assets such as management
contracts and franchise agreements as such contracts are generally at current market rates and any other value
attributable to these contracts are not considered material.
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized as earned, which is generally defined as the date upon which 2 guest occupies a room or
utilizes the hotel’s services.

Stock Incentive Plans

The Company elected to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” (APB 25) and related Interpretations in accounting for its employee stock options. As discussed in
Note 5, the alternative fair value accounting provided for under Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” (“SFAS No. 123"} requires the use of option
valuation models that were not developed for use in valuing employee stock options. Under APB 25, because the
exercise price of the Company’s stock options equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of
grant and other criteria are met, no compensation expense is recognized.

Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is required by FASB 123, under the fair value
method described in that statement. The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions used for grants in 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively: risk-free interest rates of 4.06%, 5.04% and 5.35%; expected volatility of
approximately 0.244, 0.244 and 0.253, expected dividend yields of 8%, 10% and 10%, and expected lives of
approximately 10 years. Fair value of options granted was $0.72 for 2003, $0.47 for 2002 and $0.51 for 2001.

Comprehensive Income

The Company recorded no comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2003, 2002 or the period
from inception to December 31, 2001.

Earnings per common share

Basic earnings per common share is computed based upon the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings per share is calculated after giving effect to all potential common shares that
were dilutive and outstanding for the year. Series B preferred convertible shares are not included in earnings per
common share calculations until such time it becomes probable that such shares can be converted to common
shares (see Note 4). Series C preferred convertible stock is included in basic and diluted earnings per common
share as they are considered common stock equivalents.

Income Taxes

The Company is operated as, and will annually elect to be taxed as a REIT under Section 856 to 860 of the
Internal Revenue Code. Earnings and profits, which will determine the taxability of distributions to shareholders,
will differ from income reported for financial reporting purposes primarily due to the differences for federal
income tax purposes in the estimated useful lives used to compute depreciation. The characterization of 2003
distributions of $1.50 per share for tax purposes was 84% ordinary income and 16% return of capital, and 2002
distributions of $1.00 per share for tax purposes was 61% ordinary income and 39% return of capital (unaudited).

The Lessee, as a taxable REIT subsidiary of the Company, is subject to federal and state income taxes. The
taxable REIT subsidiary incurred a financial reporting and taxable loss for the year ended December 31, 2003
and 2002, and therefore did not have any tax expense. No operating loss benefit has been recorded in the
consolidated balance sheet since realization is uncertain. Total net operating loss carry-forward for federal
income tax purposes was approximately $11.3 million at December 31, 2003 and $1.6 million at December 31,
2002. There are no material differences between the book and tax basis of the Company’s assets.
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Sales and Marketing Costs

Sales and marketing costs are expensed when incurred. These costs represent the expense for franchise
advertising and reservation systems under the terms of the hotel management agreements and general and
administrative expenses that are directly attributable to advertising and promotion.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to amounts in prior years’ financial statements to conform to current
year presentation.

During the third quarter of 2002, the Company recorded an extraordinary item of $273,789 related to the early
extinguishment of debt. The Company has reclassified this amount from an extraordinary item to interest expense
which is included in income from continuing operations, in accordance with FASB Statement No. 145, which
became effective January 1, 2003 with retroactive application.

Summary of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangibles,” effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. Under new rules, goodwill and
intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives will no longer be amortized but will be subject to annual
impairment tests in accordance with the Statements. Other intangible assets will continue to be amortized over
their useful lives. The Company adopted these new accounting standards beginning the first quarter of fiscal
2002. The adoption of these standards did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In April 2002, the FASB issued Statement 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment
of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Correction” (“SFAS No. 145”). Statement 4, “Reporting Gains and
Losses from Extinguishment of Debt” (“SFAS No. 4”), required that gains and losses from the extinguishment of
debt that were included in the determination of net income be aggregated and, if material, classified as an
extraordinary item. The Company reported the early extinguishment of the Res I debt as an extraordinary item
for 2002 in the amount of $273,789. The provisions of SFAS No. 145, related to the rescission of SFAS No. 4,
required us to reclassify this item into continuing operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements
for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” This statement requires that a liability
for the fair value of a guarantee be recognized at the time the obligation is undertaken. The statement also
requires that the liability be measured over the term of the related guarantee. This statement is effective for all
guarantees entered into subsequent to December 31, 2002. For all guarantees entered into prior to December 31,
2002, there is to be no change in accounting; however, disclosure of management’s estimate of its future
obligation under the guarantee is to be made. The company currently does not have any guarantee obligations to
which Interpretation 45 applies.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” (“FIN 46”)
which was revised in December 2003, and is effective immediately for all transactions entered into with variable
interest entities after February 2003. The provisions of FIN 46 must be applied to all remaining entities subject to
the Interpretation from the beginning of the first quarter of 2004. This statement defines the identification process
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of variable interest entities and how an entity assesses its interest in a variable interest entity to decide whether to
consolidate that entity. The Company has formed wholly-owned subsidiaries for financing purposes and such
financing is reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Currently, the Company does not anticipate this
Statement having a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In May 2003, the FASB issued Statement 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instraments with
Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS No. 150 impacts the accounting for minority interests in
limited life subsidiaries and requires that those interests be reclassified to liabilities and measured at settlement
value. The effective date of SFAS No. 150 has been deferred for an indefinite period. The application of SFAS
150 is not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s financial statements as the Company does not
currently have any limited life subsidiaries.

Note 2
Investment in Hotels

At December 31, 2003, the Company owned sixty-six Residence Inn by Marriott hotels. Ten of the hotels (the
“Crestline Portfolio™ or “Res III Portfolio™) were acquired by the Company in September 2001 from Crestline
Capital Corporation and certain of its subsidiaries for a gross purchase of $121 millior. Fifteen of the Company’s
hotels (the “Res I Portfolio”) were acquired in February 2002 for a gross purchase price of $133 million, and
twenty-three hotels (the “Res II Portfolio”) were acquired in August 2002 for a gross purchase price of $160
million. An additional hotel in Redmond, Washington was acquired in January 2003 for a gross purchase price of
$32.5 million. Seventeen Homewood Suites by Hilton hotels were acquired in connection with the acquisition of
Apple Suites, Inc. on January 31, 2003 in the amount of $183 million.

Investment in hotels consisted of the following as of December 31:

2003 2002
Land . ... e $139,098,160  $101,247,432
Building and improvements ............. ... ..l i 475,597,441 275,291,573
Furniture fixtures and equipment ............ ... it 51,667,967 20,141,180
666,363,568 396,680,185
Less: accumulated depreciation . ...............coienirin .. (27,705,484) (8,646,478)
Investment in hotels, Net .......... . it $638,658,084  $388,033,707

Acquisition of Apple Suites, Inc.

The Company entered into a merger agreement with Apple Suites, Inc. (“Apple Suites”) on October 23, 2002.
Effective January 31, 2003, Apple Suites merged with and into Hospitality Acquisiticn Company, the Company’s
wholly-owned subsidiary (the “Merger”). Apple Suites owned, either directly or through its subsidiaries, a total
of 17 upper-end extended-stay hotels throughout the United States, which comprised a total of 1,922 suites, and
all of which are operated as part of the Homewood Suites® by Hilton franchise systern. Mr. Glade M. Knight,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, was also the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
Apple Suites, Inc.

Pursuant to the Merger, each Apple Suites common share, issued and outstanding immediately prior to the
effective time of the Merger, was converted into the right to receive either: (i) one Uit of the Company,
consisting of one common share of the Company and one Series A preferred share of the Company; or (ii) if the
holder of an Apple Suites common share elected, $10.00 in cash per share, subject to a limit on the total amount
of cash to be paid in the Merger. As a result of the Merger, holders of Apple Suites common shares received a
total of 11,361,000 Units (valued at $8 per share for financial statements purposes) of the Company and
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approximately $17.8 million in cash. The Company funded the cash portion of the Merger consideration with
available cash, and the Company assumed Apple Suites’ liabilities and paid certain merger costs.

In connection with the acquisition of Apple Suites, Company shareholders were paid a special distribution of
$0.50 per share, totaling approximately $15 million.

In connection with the acquisition of Apple Suites, Inc., the Company paid total consideration of $185 million,
including assumption of liabilities and transaction costs. Apple Suites assets and liabilities were recorded at fair
value and no goodwill or intangible assets were recorded in connection with the transaction. The fair value of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed were as follows:

Investment in hOtels .. ... oo i e e $182,699,187
Cash . 2,626,696
Restricted cash . ... ..o i i i e e 55,607
Other a88BES .. .ot 4,961,959

JOtal ASSBES o vt e e e e 190,343,449
Accounts payable and accrued expenses .. ... ... ... oo 6,276,203
Notes payable ...... ... e 77,624,712

Total Habilities . ...ttt e e 83,900,915
Net assets aCGUITE . . ..o e $106,442,534

Also, in connection with this transaction, the Company terminated its advisory contract with Apple Suites
Advisors, Inc. (“ASA”) and became self advised with all employees of ASA becoming employees of the
Company. To implement the termination of the advisory agreement, the Company purchased ASA. The
Company acquired ail of Mr. Glade M. Knight’s stock in ASA instead of paying a $6.48 million termination fee
due ASA under the advisory agreement. Mr. Knight received a cash payment of $2 million and a non-interest-
bearing promissory note, due four years after the Merger, in a principal amount of $4.48 million. The Company
recognized an expense of $5.5 million related to this transaction during 2003. Also in connection with the Merger
and the termination of the advisory agreement with ASA, the Company’s outstanding Series B convertible
preferred shares were exchanged for 1,272,000 newly created Series C convertible preferred shares which have
the same voting and dividend rights as if they had already been converted into 1,272,000 common shares {see
Note 4). In connection with this transaction, the Company recognized expense of $10,152,000 in the consolidated
statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Other Acquisition

Effective January 3, 2003, the Company acquired a Residence Inn® by Marriott® hotel in Redmond, Washington,
which contains 180 suites and was in operation when acquired. The hotel offers one and two room suites with the
amenities generally offered by upscale extended-stay hotels. It is located in a developed area near Seattle,
Washington.

The gross purchase price for the hotel was $32,550,000. This amount was satisfied at closing by cash payments

and other adjustments in the approximate amount of $12,550,000 and the assumption of existing secured debt
with an outstanding principal balance of $20,004,280.

Renovation Program

During 2003, the Company began a major renovation program at its hotel properties. During this program, suites
are taken out of service while renovations are completed. During the time period units are out of service, the
Company capitalizes interest, taxes and insurance costs related to these units. During 2003 the Company
capitalized approximately $2.1 million in costs associated with rooms out of service.
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Note 3
Notes Payable
Total Notes Payable

The aggregate amounts of principal payable under all of the Company’s promissory notes, for the five years
subsequent to December 31, 2003 are as follows:

Total

2004 . $ 6,916,154
2005 7,612,510
2006 . o e 127,654,864
2007 . 5,669,699
2008 6,240,756
Thereafter . ... 199,728,978
353,822,961

Fair Value Adjustment of Assumed Debt . ........................... 8,939,757
$362,762,718

Notes payable consists of the following:

Res I Portfolio

The Company has a secured note in the amount of $82 million. The term of the note is 10 years with a 25 year
amortization. The note bears interest at the fixed rate of 7.4% per annum and paymenis are made in monthly
installments of principal and interest. The loan matures in October 2012 with an aggregate balloon payment of
approximately $67 million. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2003 and 2002 was approximately $81.7
million and $82.8 million, respectively.

Res I Portfolio

The Company has a secured note in the amount of approximately $128 million. The note bears interest at the
fixed rate of 8.85% per annum and matures in March 2006 with an aggregate balloon payment of approximately
$122 million. The note is payable in monthly installments of principal and interest. The outstanding balance at
December 31, 2003 and 2002 was approximately $127.7 million and $135.2 million, respectively.

Res Il Portfolio

The Company has a secured note in the amount of approximately $50 million. The note bears a fixed interest rate

- of 8.08% per annum. The maturity date is January 2010, with a balloon payment of $35.4 million. The loan is
payable in monthly installments including principal and interest. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2003
and 2002 was approximately $49.5 million and $51.3 million, respectively.

Redmond

The Company has a secured note in the amount of approximately $20,000,000. The note provides for an
applicable interest rate of 8.375%, subject to certain adjustments, which include the following: (a) an increase of
2% beginning on the optional prepayment date, and (b) an increase of 5% upon any event of default. The note
requires consecutive monthly payments of principal and interest in the amount of $163,348. The note matures in
December 2025. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2003 was approximately $19.7 million.
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Apple Suites
In conjunction with the acquisition of Apple Suites, the Company assumed the following secured notes:

* A secured note with an original principal amount of $9.5 million that bears interest at 8.3% per annum
and is secured by two hotels. The note is amortized over 25 years and matures in January 2012.
Payments of principal and interest are made monthly. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2003
was approximately $9.3 million.

» A secured note with an original principal amount of $7.5 million that bears interest at 8.14% per annum
and is secured by one hotel. The note is amortized over 25 years and matures in September 2011.
Payments of principal and interest are made monthly. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2003
was $7.3 million.

e A secured note with an original principal amount of $10.7 million that bears interest at 8.15% per
annum and is secured by one hotel. The note is amortized over 25 years and matures in June 2011.
Payments of principal and interest are made monthly. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2003
was $10.4 million.

e A secured note with an original principal amount of $50 million that bears interest at 9% per annum and
is secured by 11 hotels. The note is amortized over 25 years and matures on September 2010. Payments
of principal and interest are made monthly. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2003 was $48.2
million.

Note 4
Shareholders’ Equity

The Company raised equity capital through a best efforts offering of Units by David Lerner Associates, Inc. (the
“Managing Dealer”). One Unit consists of one common share and one Series A preferred share of the Company.
Through the close of the offering on November 26, 2002, 30.1 million Units were sold netting the Company
$270,000,336.

The issuance of the Series B convertible preferred shares to other individuals not employed by the Company is
accounted for under FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” The 240,000 B
shares were sold as initial capital for the Company and are subordinate to the A share preference of $10 in
liquidation.

In January 2003, the shareholders of the Company and Apple Suites, Inc. approved the acquisition of Apple
Suites, Inc. by the Company. In connection with this transaction, all of the Company’s 240,000 Series B
convertible preferred shares were exchanged for 1,272,000 Series C convertible preferred shares of the Company.
Expense related to the issuance of the Series B convertible preferred shares was determined based on fair value
of the Series B convertible preferred shares at conversion date in excess of amounts paid by these individuals.
The fair value was determined to be $8 per share at the date of the Merger.

The newly created Series C convertible preferred shares were issued in exchange for Series B convertible
preferred shares. Mr. Knight would have otherwise been entitled to receive 1,073,000 Units upon conversion of
his Series B convertible preferred shares in connection with the termination of the Company’s advisory
agreement with ASA and the Company’s property acquisition/disposition agreement with Apple Suites Realty
Group, Inc. (“ASRG”). The new Series C convertible preferred shares have a liquidation preference comparable
to the Series B convertible preferred shares, in that holders of Series C convertible preferred shares will receive
no payments in liquidation for their Series C convertible preferred shares until holders of Units are paid in full
for their Series A preferred shares. The Series C convertible preferred shares also have the same voting rights and
rights to receive dividend distributions as if they had already been converted to common shares.
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Note 5
Stock Incentive Plans

The Company elected to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” (APB 25) and related Interpretations in accounting for its employee stock options. As discussed in
Note 4, the alternative fair value accounting provided for under FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation,” (“FASB 123”) requires use of option valuation models thet were not developed for
use in valuing employee stock options. Under APB 25, because the exercise price of the Company’s stock
options equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant and other criteria are met, no
compensation expense is recognized.

Compensation expense related to issuance of 202,500 Series B convertible preferred shares to Mr. Knight was
recognized at such time when the number of shares to be issued for conversion of the Series B shares could be
reasonably estimated and the acquisition of ASA, as defined in Note 2 above, which triggered the conversion of
the Series B shares to shares was probable. The expense was measured as the difference between the fair value of
the shares for which the Series B convertible preferred shares were converted and the amnounts paid for the Series
B convertible preferred shares.

The issuance of the Series B convertible preferred shares to other individuals not employed by the company is
accounted for under FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” Expense related to
the issuance of the Series B convertible preferred shares was determined based on fair value of the Series B
convertible preferred shares at grant date in excess of amounts paid by these individuals. Since the number of
common shares to which the Series B convertible preferred shares could be converted was not known at grant
date and ultimate convertibility to common shares is only allowed through a defined triggering event, the fair
value of the Series B convertible preferred shares were remeasured and not recorded as expense until the
acquisition of ASA triggered the conversion of the Series B convertible preferred shares.

For purposes of FASB No. 123 pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to
expense over the options’ vesting period. As the options are exercisable within six months of the date of grant,
the full impact of the pro forma adjustment to net income is disclosed below. Amounts shown in thousands,
except per share data.

Year ended Year ended Year ended
(000’s) December 31,2003 December 31, 2002  December 31, 2001
Net income, asreported ............c.covrirei.... $ 1,497 $1¢8,867 $3,317
Add: Stock-based compensation expense included in
reported net income, net of related tax effects . ....... 10,176 —_ —
Deduct: Stock-based compensation expense determined
under fair value based method for all awards, net of
related tax effects ........ ... .. . .. . 10,233 . 8 12
Pro forma net income as if the fair value method had
been applied to all option grants .................. $ 1,440 $13.859 $3,305
Earnings per commons share:
Basic and diluted-as reported .. ................ § 04 3 .88 § 52
Basic and diluted-proforma ................... $ .03 $§ .88 $ .52

Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is required by FASB 123, under the fair value
method described in that statement. The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions used for grants in 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively: risk-free interest rates of 4.06%, 5.04% and 5.35%; expected volatility of
approximately 0.244, 0.244 and 0.253, expected dividend yields of 8%, 10% and 10%, and expected lives of
approximately 10 years. Fair value of options granted was $0.72 for 2003, $0.47 for 22002 and $0.51 for 2001.
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The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options
which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the
input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility.

Stock compensation expense included in the Statement of Operations for year ended December 31, 2003 was
$10,176,000, attributable to the conversion of all 240,000 B shares to Preferred C shares. The amount of stock
compensation expense that would have been recognized had the fair value method prescribed under SFAS No.
123 been applied is also $10,176,000, as the Merger, defined in Note 2, triggered the conversion of the Class B
convertible preferred shares under a known conversion ratio.

On April 30, 2001, the Board of Directors approved a Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan (the
“Directors Plan”) whereby Directors, who are not employees of the Company or affiliates (see Note 7),
automatically receive options to purchase stock for five years from the adoption of the plan. Under the Directors
Plan, the number of shares to be issued is equal to 45,000 plus 1.8% of the number of Units sold in excess of
3,157,395 Units. This plan currently relates to the initial public offering of 20,157,895 Units and the additional
offering of 10,000,036 Units; therefore, the maximum number of shares to be issued under the Directors Plan is
currently 515,355. The options expire 10 years from the date of grant. As of December 31, 2003, 238,497 Units
have been reserved for issuance.

On April 30, 2001, the Board of Directors approved an Incentive Stock Option Plan (the “Incentive Plan”)
whereby incentive awards may be granted to certain employees of the Company or affiliates. Under the Incentive
Plan, the number of Units to be issued is equal to 35,000 plus 4.625% of the number of shares sold in the initial
offering in excess of 3,157,895 plus 4.4% of the total number of Units sold in additional offerings. This plan also
currently relates to the initial public offering of 20,157,895 Units and the additional offering of 10,000,036 Units;
therefore, the maximum number of Units that can be issued under the Incentive Plan is currently 1,243,550. As of
December 31, 2003, 532,180 Units have been reserved for issuance.

Both plans generally provide, among other things, that options be granted at exercise prices not lower than the
market value of the Units on the date of grant. Under the Incentive Plan, at the earliest, options become

exercisable at the date of grant. The optionee has up to 10 years from the date on which the options first become
exercisable to exercise the options: In- 2003, the Company granted 33,212 options fo purchase shares under the
Directors Plan-and granted no options under the Incentive Plan. Also, as part of the Merger, the Company

converted 45,888 options granted under the Apple Suites Director’s Plan to Company options with the same
terms and agreements. In 2002, the Company granted 16,128 options to purchase shares under the Directors Plan
and granted no options under the Incentive Plan, and in 2001, the Company granted 26,592 options to purchase
shares under the Directors Plan and granted no options under the Incentive Plan. Activity in the Company’s share
option plan during 2003 and 2002 is summarized in the following table:

2003 2002 2001

Outstanding, beginning of year: . ........ ... .. ... .o, 4277120 26,592 —
Granted ... .. . e 79,100 16,128 26,592

Exercised ... — — —

Expiredorcanceled ............. ... .. .. i, — — —
Outstanding, end of year: .............. . iieiiiiinnnn. .. 121,820 42,720 26,592
Exercisable, end of year: ... .. R 121,820 42,720 26,592

The weighted-average eXercisSe price: .............cuveunennen . 9.91 9.74 9.59
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Note 6
Management Agreements
Residence Inn Hotels

The Company’s Residence Inn hotels are subject to management agreements under which Residence Inne by
Marriotte, Inc. (the “Manager”) manages the hotels, generally for an initial term of 15 to 20 years with renewal
terms at the option of the Manager of up to an additional 50 years. The agreements generally provide for payment
of base management fees, which are calculated annually and are a percentage of sales, and incentive management
fees over a priority return (as defined in the management agreements). Incentive man:agement fees are currently
payable only if and to the extent there is sufficient cash flow from the hotels after consideration of qualifying
debt service and after consideration to a priority return on investment, including property improvements.
Amounts not currently payable are deferred and are payable in future years only if and to the extent there is
sufficient cash flow from future operations or upon sale or refinancing of the hotels after consideration to a
priority return to us (as defined in the management agreements), which is generally 121%. In the event of early
termination of the management agreements, the Manager will receive additional fees based on the unexpired term
and expected future base and incentive management fees. The Company has the option to terminate the
management agreements if specified performance thresholds are not satisfied.

Incentive fees are payable on a portfolio by portfolio basis for Residence Inn propertizs. The Company has three
portfolios of multiple hotels and one other hotel with separate management agreements which are subject to this

calculation. The Company records incentive management fee exposure when it is considered probable that these

fees will be paid. The Company has recorded the full amount of deferred incentive management fees on the Res

111 portfolio and Redmond hotel. The Company has not recorded any deferred incentive management fees for the
Res I and Res II portfolios.

The Company acquired its Residence Inn hotels in separate transactions, (Res I — purchased February 2002, Res
IT - purchased August 28, 2002, Res III — purchased September 2001, and Redmond purchased January 2003). In
the Res I and Res II purchases, the Company assumed the amended and restated management agreements in
effect with the Manager by the prior owner and assumed deferred incentive management fees totaling $6.7
million and $7.0 million, respectively, at the date of the respective acquisitions. Additionally, the Company
assumed the cost basis of $187 million and $243 million for Res [ and Res 11, respectively, and the holding
period of the prior owner for purposes of calculating the priority returns upon sale of the properties. The
Company paid approximately $133 million and $160 million for Res [ and Res IL, respectively.

The following table summarizes deferred incentive management fees (“DIMF”) under these management
agreements (dollars in millions).

IMF

Accumulated 003 Amount accrued

DIMF Post- Total JMF  Total in Consolidated

Assumed  Acquisition IMF _]‘?aid DIMF Balance Sheet

ResI ... . 367 $4.9 $11.6 $0.0 $11.6 $0.0
ResII ... 7.0 2.4 94 00 9.4 0.0
ResIII ... 0.0 0.7 07 00 0.7 0.7
Redmond . ...........ooouiiiiii 0.0 05 05 05 00 0.0
Total ..o $13.7 $8.5  $222 $0.5 $21.7 $0.7

No amounts of DIMF were recorded upon the acquisition of Res I and Res II as the fair value of these amounts
were not readily determinable and payment was not considered probable.

Pursuant to the terms of the management agreements, the Manager also furnishes the hotels with certain chain
services which are generally provided on a central or regional basis to all hotels in the Marriott International
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hotel system. Chain services include central training, advertising and promotion, a national reservation system,
computerized payroll and accounting services, and such additional services as needed which may be more
efficiently performed on a centralized basis. Costs and expenses incurred in providing such services are allocated
among all domestic hotels managed, owned or leased by Marriott International or its subsidiaries on a fair and
equitable basis. For the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, the Company had incurred
$3,327,065 and $1,736,000 in chain services. In addition, The Company’s hotels participate in the Marriott
Rewards program. The cost of this program is charged to all hotels in the Marriott International hotel system.

The lessees are obligated to escrow funds, generally 5% of revenue, to cover the cost of replacements and
renewals to the hotels’ property and improvements. The lessees are obligated under these management
agreements to fund FF&E requirements in excess of amounts placed in restricted cash accounts. At December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively, the lessee had FF&E escrow balances of $15,912,950 and $18,640,007.

The management agreements also provide for payments of costs associated with certain system-wide advertising,
promotional and public relations materials and programs and the operational costs of reservation systems. Each
hotel pays two and one-half percent (2.5%) of suite revenues to this marketing fund. For the year ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company incurred $3,669,279 and $2,572,392, respectively, in marketing fees.

Homewood Suites Hotels

The Company’s 17 Homewood Suites hotels are managed by Promus Hotels, Inc. (“Promus”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Hilton Hotels Corporation (“Hilton”) under the terms of a management agreement, as part of the
Homewood Suitese by Hilton franchise.

The Company is committed under management agreements to fund up to 5% of gross revenues for capital
expenditures to include periodic replacement or refurbishment of furniture, fixtures, and equipment. At
December 31, 2003, Promus held approximately $600,000 for these capital improvement reserves.

Promus manages day-to-day operations of the Company’s Homewood Suites hotels. Promus charges fees for this
function, which are calculated as a percentage of revenue. Incentive management fees are calculated, for certain
properties, on the basis of operating profit of the hotels. No incentive management fees were earned in 2003.
Promus also charges a fee, calculated as a percentage of suite revenue, for franchise licenses to operate as a
Homewood Suitese by Hilton and to participate in its reservation system. Total expenses for franchise fees,
management fees, advertising expenses and other reimbursable services were $7,584,591 for the year ended
December 31, 2003. These expenses are included in the hotel operating expenses in the statement of operations.

Note 7
Related Parties

Prior to January 31, 2003, the Company was externally-advised and had contracted with ASA to advise and
provide day to day management services to the Company. In accordance with the contract, the Company paid
ASA afee equal to .1% to .25% of total equity contributions received by the Company in addition to certain
reimbursable expenses. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, ASA earned $62,500 and $568,170
under this agreement.

Concurrent with the Company’s merger with Apple Suites on January 31, 2003, the Company terminated its
advisory contract with ASA and became self-advised. To implement the termination of the advisory agreement,
the Company purchased ASA. The Company acquired all of Mr. Glade M. Knight’s stock in ASA instead of
paying a $6.48 million termination fee due ASA under the advisory agreement. Mr. Knight received a cash
payment of $2 million and a non-interest-bearing promissory note, due four years after the Merger, in a principal
amount of $4.48 million. The Company recognized an expense of approximately $5.5 million related to this
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transaction through December 31, 2003. Also in connection with the Company’s Merger and the termination of
the advisory agreement with ASA, the Company’s outstanding Series B convertible preferred shares were
exchanged for 1,272,000 newly created Series C convertible preferred shares which have the same voting and
dividend rights as if they had already been converted into 1,272,000 common shares (see note 2).

During 2003, the Company entered into an advisory agreement with Apple Hospitality Five Advisors, Inc.
whereas the Company receives advisory fee revenue equal to .1% to .25% of total equity contributions received
by Apple Hospitality Five, Inc., plus certain reimbursable expenses in exchange for providing day to day
advisory and real estate due diligence services for Apple Hospitality Five, Inc. The Ccmpany received advisory
fee revenue in the amount of $296,435 under this agreement for the year ended December 31, 2003.

As of December 31, 2002, the Company had contracted with ASRG to provide brokerage services for the
acquisition and disposition of the Company’s real estate assets. In accordance with the: contract, ASRG was paid
a fee of 2% of the gross purchase price of any acquisitions or gross sale price of any dispositions of real estate
investments, subject to certain conditions. For the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, ASRG earned
$651,000 and 35,866,784, respectively, under this agreement. ASRG is owned by Mr. Glade M. Knight, the
Company’s Chairman. Concurrent with the Company’s merger with Apple Suites on Nanuary 31,2003, the
Company’s agreement with ASRG was terminated.

In addition, each Apple Suites Class B convertible share owned by Mr. Knight and two other individuals, issued
and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger, was converted into the right to receive two
Units of the Company. As a result, holders of Apple Suites Class B received 480,000 Units of the Company.
Apple Suites recognized expense of $3.8 million during the first quarter of 2003, before the consummation of the
Merger, related to this conversion.

Note 8
Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with FAS
128 (in thousands):

Year endec! Year ended
December 31, 21003 December 31, 2002

Numerator:
Net income (loss) and numerator for basic and diluted

CAIMUNES « .+ v vttt ottt ettt e e $ 1,497 $18,867
Denominator: ... ...ttt
Denominator for basic earnings per share-weighted-average

shares . ... ... 41,421 21,557
Effect of dilutive securities: .. ......... ... i, 1 1

Stock OPtIONS: .« .\t e e
Denominator for diluted earnings per share-adjusted weighted-
average shares and assumed conversions ................ 41,422 21,558

Basic and diluted earnings per common share .............. $ 0.04 $ 0288
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Note 9
Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

The following is a summary of quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2003 and
December 31, 2002:

Second Third Fourth
Zﬂ First Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenues ................ T $ 43,444,636 $50,199,055 $52,742,500 $49,420,186
NetinCome . . ..ottt e i $(10,778,908) $ 5,483,228 $ 5,076,375 $ 1,716,741
Basic and diluted earnings per common share . . . . . . $ (0.28). $ 0.13 $ 0.12.-$- - -0:04-
Distributions paid pershare ........... ... ..., $ 075 $ 025 $ 025 % 0.25

Second Fourth
30_(2 First Quarter Quarter Third Quarter Quarter
Revenues ......... ... i $ 12,350,516 $22,219,637 $24,482,552 $47,167,099
NetinCome ... .vvr it et e e $ 2,288,543 $ 3,228,053 $ 4,840,832 $ 8,509,211
Basic and diluted earnings per common share . . . . .. $ 015 § 0.17 § 0.19 §$ 0.29
Distributions paid per share .................... $ 025 $ 025 $ 025 $ 0.25

Note 10
Pro Forma Information (unaudited)

The following pro forma information for the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 is presented as if the
acquisition of Apple Suites, Inc. as well as the Res I, Res I and Redmond acquisitions, occurred on January 1,
2002. The pro forma information does not purport to represent what the Company’s results of operations would
actually have been if such transactions, in fact, had occurred on January 1, 2002, nor does it purport to represent
the results of operations for future periods. Merger related costs associated with the Apple Suites merger have
been excluded from the pro forma results, as they are associated with the merger and are non-recurring operating
expenses. Amounts shown in thousands, except per share data.

Year ended Year ended

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Hotel revenues . ...t i e e e $199,526 $214,862
NEtINCOME © o\ e ettt e e et et e $ 17,402 $ 28,921
Net income per share basicand diluted .. .................. $ 038 $ 084

Note 11
Industry Segments

The Company owns extended-stay hotel properties throughout the United States that generate rental and other
property related income. The Company separately evaluates the performance of each of its hotel properties.
However, because each of the hotel properties has similar economic characteristics, facilities, and services, the
properties have been aggregated into a single segment. All segment disclosure is included in or can be derived
from the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Note 12
Subsequent Events

In January 2004, the Company declared and distributed to its shareholders dividends in the amount of $10.5
million ($0.25 per share).



The Company instituted a Unit Redemption Program to provide limited interim liquidity to its shareholders.
Redemption of Units, when requested, is made quarterly on a first-come, first-served basis. Shareholders may
request redemption of Units for a purchase price equal to the lesser of: (1) the purchase price per unit that the
shareholder actually paid for the unit (or the price that the shareholder actually paid for the Apple Suites, Inc.
common shares, if the Units were acquired through the exchange of Apple Suites, Inc. common shares in the
Company’s merger with Apple Suites, Inc.); or (2) $10.00 per unit. The Company reserves the right to change the
purchase price of redemptions, reject any request for redemption, or otherwise amend the terms of, suspend, or
terminate the Unit Redemption Program. During the month of January 2004, the Company redeemed 199,181
Units in the amount of $1,983,251.

In February 2004, the Company initiated a dividend reinvestment plan which will provide additional liquidity for
the Company and a cost effective way for shareholders to continue to invest in the Company.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreement with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Senior management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the
effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this
report. Based on this evaluation process, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded
that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective and that there have been no changes in the
Company's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the last fiscal quarter that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s interaal control over financial
reporting. Since that evaluation process was completed, there have been no significarit changes in internal
controls or in other factors that could significantly affect these controls.
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PART 11

Item 10. Director’s and Executive Officers of the Registrant

For information with respect to the Company’s directors and executive officers, see the information in the
Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2004 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which information is hereby
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

For information with respect to the Company’s executive compensation, see the information in the Company’s
Proxy Statement for its 2004 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which information is hereby incorporated herein
by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder
Matters

For information with respect to the Company’s security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management
related shareholder matters, see the information in the Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2004 Annual Meeting
of Shareholders, which information is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

For information with respect to the Company’s certain relationships and related transactions, see the information
in the Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2004 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which information is hereby
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14, Principal Accountant Fees and Services

For information with respect to the Company’s principal accountant fees and services, see the information in the
Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2004 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which information is hereby
incorporated herein by reference.

For information with respect to the Company’s pre-approval policies for audit and non-audit services, see the

information in the Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2004 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which information
is hereby incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K
(a)

1. Financial Statements of Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.
Independent Auditor’s Report—Ermst & Young
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 and for the
period from January 17, 2001 (initial capitalization) through December 31, 2001

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002 and for the period from January 17, 2001 (initial capitalization) through December 31, 2001

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December: 31, 2003 and 2002 and for
the period from January 17, 2001 (initial capitalization) through December 31, 2001

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

These financial statements are set forth in Item 8 of this report and are hereby incorporated by
reference.

2. Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule III—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation (Included at the end of this Part I'V of this
report.)

3. Exbibits
Incorporated herein by reference are the exhibits listed under “Exhibits Index” to our Report available
at www.sec.gov.
(b) The following reports on Form 8-K were filed by the registrant during the last quarter covered by this
report:

None
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

AprPLE HospPITALITY TwO, INC.

By: /s/ GLADE M. KNIGHT Date: March 12, 2004
Glade M. Knight,
Chairman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer, and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

By: /s/ Bryan Peery Date: March 12, 2004
Bryan Peery,
Chief Accounting Officer (Principal
Financial and Principal Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed on by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

By: /s/ Glade M. Knight Date: March 12, 2004
Glade M. Knight, Director

By: [/ Lisa B. Kem Date: March 12, 2004

Lisa B, Kern, Director

By /s/BruceH Matson Date: March 12, 2004

Bruce H. Matson, Director

By:__ /s/Michael S Waters Date: March 12, 2004
Michael S. Waters, Director

By: /s/ Robert M. Wily Date: March 12, 2004
Robert M. Wily, Director
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o= amt Auditg,s ______________Richmend Virainia | ]

Kristian M. Gathright
Chief Operating Officer

This annual report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of section 27A of the Securities Act df 1993, as amended, and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Such statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, dnd other factors which may cause the actual
results, performance, or achievements of the company to be materially different from any results, performance or a¢hievements expressed or implied by such for-
ward-looking statements. Such factors include: the availability and terms of financing; changes in national, regional and local economies and business conditions;
competitors within the extended-stay hotel industry; the ability of the company to implement its acquisition strdtegy and operating strategy and to manage
planned growth; the ability of the company to implement and realize the intended benefits of renovation programs; and the ability to repay or refinance debt as
it becomes due. Although the company believes that the assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements} contained herein are reasonable, any of the
assumptions could be inaccurate; therefore, there can be no assurance that such statements included in this annufl report will prove to be accurate. In light of
the significant uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking statements included herein, the inclusion of such inforfnation should not be regarded as a represen-
tation by the company or any other person that the results or conditions described in such statements or the objectivps and plans of the company will be achieved.







